BOARD OF TRUSTEES
August 24, 2021
6:30 PM
Leeper Center, 3800 Wilson Avenue, Wellington, CO
Regular Meeting Agenda
Individuals that attend the meeting in person and have not been fully vaccinated will be required to wear a face
covering while in attendance.
Individuals wishing to make public comments must attend the meeting in person or may submit comments by
sending an email to euckerkk@wellingtoncolorado.gov. The email must be received by 4:00 p.m. Tuesday
August 24, 2021. The comments will be provided to the Trustees and added as an addendum to the
packet. Emailed comments will not be read during the meeting.
The Zoom details below are for online viewing and listening only.
Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86962140205?pwd=N1NlVC81SmNCMjNENU01a3N1Ykl6QT09
Passcode: 707315
Webinar ID: 869 6214 0205

Or One tap mobile :
US: +17207072699,,86962140205# or +13462487799,,86962140205#
Or Telephone:
US: +1 720 707 2699 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 253 215 8782

A.

B.

CALL TO ORDER
1.

Pledge of Allegiance

2.

Roll Call

3.

Amendments to Agenda

4.

Conflict of Interest

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION
1.

Public Comment

2.

Presentation
a.

Quarterly Parks and Recreation Update
 Presentation: Dean Campos, Parks and Recreation Manager
3735 Cleveland Ave | PO Box 127 | Wellington, CO 80549 | WellingtonColorado.gov

Page 1 of 94

C.

CONSENT AGENDA
1.

D.

Minutes of the August 10, 2021 Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

ACTION ITEMS
1.

Resolution No. 25-2021 - A Resolution Authorizing the Town of Wellington to Enter into an
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Wellington Fire Protection District Regarding the
Administrative Waiver of Mutual Fees
 Presentation: Patti Garcia, Town Administrator

2.

Ordinance No. 10-2021 - An Ordinance Repealing, Revising and Readopting Article 13 of Chapter
2 of the Wellington Municipal Code Concerning the Wellington Parks and Recreation Advisory
Board
 Presentation: Patti Garcia, Town Administrator
3.

2020 Audit Presentation
 Presentation: Tyra Litzau, CPA

E.

LIQUOR LICENSE AUTHORITY
1.

Liquor License Renewal - El Mezcal, Inc d/b/a Sol de Jalisco
 Presentation: Krystal Eucker, Town Clerk

F.

G.

REPORTS
1.

Town Attorney

2.

Town Administrator

3.

Staff Communications

4.

Board Reports

EXECUTIVE SESSION
1.

H.

For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations,
developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators pursuant to Section 24-6402(4)(e), C.R.S. – regarding negotiations with North Poudre Irrigation Company. As required by
C.R.S. §24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(A) and (II) (E) the executive session proceedings will be
electronically recorded and the record will be preserved for 90 days through November 22, 2021.

ADJOURN

The Town of Wellington will make reasonable accommodations for access to Town services, programs, and activities and special communication arrangements
Individuals needing special accommodation may request assistance by contacting at Town Hall or at 970-568-3380 ext. 110 at least 24 hours in advance.
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Board of Trustees Meeting
Date:
Submitted By:
Subject:

August 24, 2021
Dean Campos
Quarterly Parks and Recreation Update
 Presentation: Dean Campos, Parks and Recreation Manager

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION
 Capital Improvement Plan Update
o Winick Park - Pour and Place
o Knolls Linear Park - Replacing Soft Trails
Parks
 Irrigation & Mowing Maps - Park System
 Recreation
o Hired on new Assistant Recreation Coordinator (Starting August 23rd, 2021)
o Focusing on customer service
o Rentals - Ball field lighting
 Cost Recovery
o Finalizing Data - Fee Schedule
o Recreation Software - Amelia by Smart Rec
 Partnership
o Wellington Soccer Club - Goals Donated
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
ATTACHMENTS
None
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Board of Trustees Meeting
Date:
Submitted By:
Subject:

August 24, 2021
Krystal Eucker, Town Clerk
Minutes of the August 10, 2021 Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
ATTACHMENTS
1.
08.10.21 BOT Minutes
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
August 10, 2021
6:30 PM
Leeper Center, 3800 Wilson Avenue, Wellington, CO
MINUTES
A.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Hamman called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
1.

Pledge of Allegiance
Mayor Hamman asked that all rise for the pledge of allegiance.

2.

Roll Call
Mayor Troy Hamman
Mayor Pro Tem Wyatt Knutson
Trustee Jon Gaiter
Trustee John Jerome
Trustee Rebekka Kinney – Arrived at 6:32 p.m.
Trustee Ashley Macdonald – Arrived at 6:53 p.m.
Trustee Tim Whitehouse
Also Present:
Patti Garcia, Town Administrator
Dan Sapienza, March & Olive, LLC, Town Attorney
Cody Bird, Director of Planning
Bob Gowing, Director of Planning
Hallie Sheldon, Management Analyst
Krystal Eucker, Town Clerk
Judi Tippetts, Finance Director
Mahalia Henschel, Communications Specialist
Ross Lagenese, Library Manager
Dean Campos, Parks and Recreation Manager
Tyler Sexton, Assistant Finance Director

B.

3.

Amendments to Agenda
Mayor Hamman asked if there were any amendments to the agenda. The minutes listed on the
agenda were for the date of July 13, 2021 although the correct date of the minutes for approval is
July 27, 2021.

4.

Conflict of Interest
Mayor Hamman asked if there were any conflicts of interest this evening to which there was none.

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION
1.

Public Comment
Mayor Hamman opened the meeting for public comment to which there was none.
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2.

Presentation
a.

Larimer County Funding for Early Childhood
Christina Taylor, Chief Executive Officer, Early Childhood Council of Larimer County and
Deirdre Sullivan, President and CEO, United Way of Larimer County reviewed the ballot
initiative report that was included in packet material.
Ms. Sullivan informed the Board that over half of what the United Way of Larimer County
distributes is to support the market failure of childcare in the county. In 2008, United Way
identified the absence of childcare as the number one deterrent to a family’s economic selfsufficiency. As families try to live and work in our communities, the absence of care is a
barrier. It was because of that identification and United Way’s investment over the years that
the partnership with the Early Childhood Council to embark on this process with a steering
committee was created.
Ms. Taylor commented that in the early part of 2021, the Council pursued a contract for
consultants to guide the strategic liability assessment to determine if the community was ready
for tax funding to support early care and education access. A 17-member steering committee
was also convened from various entities for a broad representation of the county. Through the
process, public polling was conducted to get a sense for voters’ appetite for potential taxes on
the ballot. Expert cost modeling was completed to determine the amount of revenue that
could potentially be generated and how that revenue could be used to solve childcare access in
the county as the cost of one child to go to childcare is as much as a mortgage.
Ms. Taylor commented that in early July, the steering committee reported to the Larimer
County Commissioners that a measure be referred to the ballot that consists of a .25% sales
and use tax for Larimer County would generate approximately $17 million annually to support
early care and education.
Ms. Taylor commented that only 25% of infants and toddlers in Larimer County have access
to licensed childcare and only 65% of children ages 3-5 have access which is based on both
parents in the workforce.
Ms. Sullivan commented that this would expand the opportunity for family childcare homes.
Currently, scholarships and grants are only available from United Way to non-profit centers so
people that want to start a home childcare cannot benefit from the scholarships and grants; part
of this will be the ability to support those home childcare providers.
Mayor Hamman inquired if this will be referred to the ballot.
Ms. Taylor commented that they remain hopeful as there is still some hesitation and one
of those hesitations is to ensure that the municipal partners are informed.
Trustee Kinney inquired if this initiative could apply to home childcare providers, would that
also include for profit childcare centers.
Ms. Taylor commented that it would.
Trustee Gaiter inquired as to why there is a gap in childcare centers.
Ms. Taylor commented that centers do not make a lot of money and they have to pay low
wages to their staff as the hourly wage is $12.00-$15.00 so employees are hard to retain.
Part of this initiative is to subsidize salaries up to a living wage.
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Ms. Sullivan commented that there are a lot of regulatory pieces in terms of ratios and
licensing requirements so we are working on breaking some of those down while still
being able to provide a safe environment for children. One example is that there is a
requirement that a director be in the building at least 60% of the time so if that regulation
was before cell phones and Zoom, that could be reevaluated while not jeopardizing the
health and safety of the children.
Trustee Gaiter inquired as to the criteria that was used to determine who would be on the
steering committee.
Ms. Taylor commented that there was a wide swath of individuals from Larimer County
and we wanted to ensure there was business representation for employer perspective,
government individuals for public service perspective, early education experts and
government officials. The goal was to get as much information and feedback as possible
while maintaining a manageable process.
Trustee Gaiter commented that it seems like a top-down view and there was not much
interaction from the average person that lives in Larimer County.
Ms. Taylor commented that the Council is very community driven and the strategic plan
is conducted over a 6-month community input process. During that process in 2019,
there were over 100 community members from across the county that provided input on
the strategic plan which is where the Council identified the priority to determine the
feasibility of potential tax funding to support the early childcare and education system.
Also, an advisory council meeting is held every month with 25-60 participants
throughout the county. It was very intentional to have a community voice through the
process.
Trustee Gaiter inquired as to how much of the funding would go to the organizations that
would be part of the process of putting this together.
Ms. Taylor commented that the steering committee recommended that 95% of the
funding would be distributed to the community so 5% would be used for administration.
The steering committee recommended that the Council would be the administrator of this
funding although that has not been settled.
b.

Community Survey Results
Ryan Winger, Director of Data Analysis and Campaign Strategy with Magellan Strategies
reviewed the community survey results that were included in packet material. Magellan
Strategies is pleased to present the results of an online survey of 737 residents in the Town of
Wellington, Colorado. The interviews were conducted from June 15th to 30th, 2021. This
survey has a margin of error of +/- 3.47% at the 95 percent confidence interval. The survey
data was weighted to be representative of the adult gender demographics in the Town of
Wellington. A Majority of residents rate Wellington as a good or excellent place to live (71%)
and raise a family (69%) and these are strong benchmarks moving forward. As with many
communities along the Front Range, population growth is clearly a contentious issue in
Wellington.
Trustee Kinney inquired if there was a way to see how Wellington ranked among other
communities that had similar questions.
Mr. Winger stated he could look at comparable towns and come up with some
benchmarks.
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Trustee Kinney inquired as to what the recommended timeframe would be to do another
similar survey.
Mr. Winger stated it varies on the community although every two years is appropriate.
Trustee Kinney inquired as to what the costs would be to do a similar survey.
Mr. Winger stated it would be around $12,000 although some things could be trimmed to
reduce cost.
Trustee Kinney inquired if the survey was available in multiple languages.
Mr. Winger stated since this survey was done pro-bono, it was not although typically it
would be other languages as well. In communities where there is a high number of
Spanish speaking individuals, not many take the survey in Spanish, they take it in English.
c.

Strategic Plan Update
Hallie Sheldon, Management Analyst gave an update on the Strategic Plan.
The Strategic Plan outlines 4 Focus Areas: Growth and Development, Infrastructure,
Community Engagement, and Organizational Strength.
Focus Area: Growth and Development
Goal 1: Balanced and resilient revenues
 American Rescue Plan Act Money
o Wellington will be receiving $2.6 million dollars as a result of the Federal
American Rescue Plan Act.
o The Town has received the first $1.3 million and another $1.3 will be coming
next year.
o The use of these funds will be determined by the Board of Trustees pending the
final language of permissible uses.
 Fee Schedule Review
o Staff is currently reviewing all Town fees to determine necessary changes to
meet regional market standards.
o This will come before the board for approval towards the end of the year.
Goal 2: Identify, attract and retain commercial development and businesses
 New Businesses in Town
o BBQ Love Shack / Old Colorado Brewing Co.
o Rust
o Dollar General
o Human Bean
 Grants Supporting Businesses
o Town has applied for several grants to support businesses in the town.
 First is the Revitalizing Main Street Grant awarded for a total of
$149,999
 Promotes Downtown and Pedestrian Safety
 Waiting to hear award on downtown improvement grant -Up to $2
million
 Currently writing the Open for Business Grant for submission
 This would help with energy efficiency and facade
improvements for businesses.
o Staff working with local commercial lenders to promote resources for local
3735 Cleveland Ave | PO Box 127 | Wellington, CO 80549 | WellingtonColorado.gov
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o

businesses.
 Colorado Local Lending Company
Main Street Market
 The Town would like to celebrate the number of vendors participating
every week and the crowds that have come to support the businesses
around Town as a result.

Goal 3: Comprehensive Plan - alignment and execution
 Comprehensive plan was adopted by the Planning Commission on August 2, 2021.
o Land Use Code update will follow in alignment with the Comprehensive Plan.
Goal 4: Develop partnerships for long-term funding strategies
 Highlighted partnerships for this update:
o Wellington Main Streets:
 There has been significant collaboration in the search, writing, and
execution of grants to support Wellington businesses and infrastructure
around the town.
o Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT):
 The Town has been working alongside CDOT to promote funding
opportunities for improvements to Town infrastructure.
o North Poudre Irrigation Company (NPIC):
 Collaboration is occurring regarding the future of the Water Treatment
Plant expansion site and the lease agreements among NPIC and the
Town. This partnership is vital to the future of water in Wellington.
o Northern Water Conservancy District:
 Northern Water has agreed to support the Town's newly created water
conservation program.
 They have agreed to purchase 100 showerheads and handhelds to help
pilot a showerhead exchange program to help residents save water
indoors.
 They will be providing outdoor irrigation audits for residences and
HOAs interested in the town. This would allow professional irrigation
specialists to come and help residents understand where their irrigation
systems are wasting water and the best practices to ensure efficient
watering.
 Finally, they will be performing a technical irrigation audit on
Centennial Park to determine the best water saving practices for the
Town's irrigation systems as well.
o Regional partners regarding water
 Town staff has been working with regional water partners across
Northern Colorado to determine possible redundant water supplies and
ways to partner for the best interest of our communities.
o Metro DPA Program
 The Board of Trustees approved the offering of the Metro DPA program
in Wellington on July 13, 2021.
 This program is a self-funded homeownership and down payment
assistance program available to Front Range communities.
o B Dams
 There continues to be regional collaboration among the participants
regarding the B Dams project.
3735 Cleveland Ave | PO Box 127 | Wellington, CO 80549 | WellingtonColorado.gov
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o

Larimer County
 The Town continues to work with Larimer County regarding future
election processes and procedures. More to discuss tonight with IGA
presentation.

Focus Area: Infrastructure
Goal 1: Ensure adequate current and future water resources, treatment and delivery
 Town is continuing conversations with regional water partners to determine redundant
water supplies and possible future partnerships.
 Water Conservation program:
o Town staff is working with Logan Simpson to update the Town's Landscape
and Irrigation standards to align with more efficient outdoor watering practices
and drought resistant landscapes.
o Northern Water Conservancy District has agreed to partner on several projects,
including a showerhead exchange project, residential irrigation audits, Town
property irrigation audits, and training for Town Staff.
o CSU Extension held an outdoor irrigation program on July 29 to promote best
practices for efficient watering outdoors. This can be rewatched on the Town
YouTube Page.
o Town staff will be holding a Youth Water Conservation Program at the
Wellington Public Library including a demonstration of the water treatment
plant process.
o Town staff will also be teaching water conservation classes for residents who
have applied for the Hardship Utility Grant.
o Finally, Town staff continues to replace old residential water meters with
automatic meters. The goal of these replacements will be an Advanced
Metering system in the future that will help residents with water consumption
self-education and leak detection opportunities.
o All of these programs and projects align with the Town's 2018 adopted
Municipal Water Efficiency Plan.
Goal 2: Plan and develop purposeful community and Town facilities
 New Town Hall
o Town staff is narrowing down 3 alternative sites for the future Town Hall.
o Infusion architects has conducted a site analysis for Library Park as requested
by the Board of Trustees at the January 19, 2021, Work Session.
o They will conduct site analyses for the other 3 alternative sites as well.
o The $25,000 DOLA Site Selection grant will expire on September 30, 2021.
o Town staff will bring a presentation to the Board in September regarding the 4
potential site options.
Goal 3: Create opportunities for transportation and storm water management improvements
 As mentioned above, the Town and the Main Street's program have been working
together on several grant opportunities that would improve infrastructure in the
downtown corridor.
 Stormwater Master Plan:
o The Town has hired Icon Engineering for the Stormwater Master Plan and the
kickoff meeting has just occurred.
Focus Area: Community Engagement
3735 Cleveland Ave | PO Box 127 | Wellington, CO 80549 | WellingtonColorado.gov
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Goal 1: Build awareness about the Town of Wellington services and programs
 The Town has increased social media presence.
o April to August, the Facebook reach was up 6% and Instagram was up 36.9%.
o Yearly, Twitter engagement has been up 384.6%.








The Town recognizes that not all community members have access to social media.
o Since the beginning of the year, Town staff has provided printed handbills,
banners, water bill stuffers, and advertised at community events in attempt to
reach more residents.
Collaboration among North Forty News and Poudre School District will allow Town
news to reach more residents in a timely manner.
Monthly Newsletter
o The monthly newsletter was created in December 2020 and is published the first
Wednesday of every month.
o In April 2021, there were 217 subscribers. This has now grown to 485
subscribers.
o The Town has a 52% open rate which is much higher than the 28.2%
government average.
Promotion of the Hardship Utility Grant approved by the Board of Trustees began on
August 4 and will continue throughout the year.
Community engagement during the Comprehensive Plan process was extensive.
o This outreach included online engagement, stakeholder meetings, Town Halls,
small group/1 on 1 meetings with residents, etc.

Goal 2: Improve access to local government
 Translation services
o The Town website now has the software available to translate information to
allow for better access to all residents.
o There has been an increase in graphics and social media posts that are translated
as well.
 Town staff is working on building a "reports" page on the Town website in preparation
for the increased information and details regarding the water and wastewater treatment
plant projects.
o The goal is to promote accessibility for these projects.
Focus Area: Organizational Strength
Goal 1: Provide regular training programs for all employees and develop cross-training plans.
 All staff completed a cybersecurity training provided by the Department of Defense.
 Staff attended a Worker's Compensation training.
Goal 2: Update Personnel Policy
 Town staff is currently updating personnel policies to align with strategic plan goals.
d.

Wellington Public Library Quarterly Update
Mr. Lagenese informed the Board that it has been a stellar summer and quarter with much
positive news to report. This is a community that works together, supports, and gives from
such entities as Parks and Recreation, the firefighters, business owners, Main Streets, The
Chamber, and more.
There is a consistent and unwavering support by such local businesses as Owl Canyon Coffee,
3735 Cleveland Ave | PO Box 127 | Wellington, CO 80549 | WellingtonColorado.gov
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Sparge, Thistle, Soul Squared and Leave it to Cleaver, Proper Time, Gridiron Fitness, Trim
Salon and Barbershop, LazyDane, The Cakery, Polished Spa, and Beauty Renewed. Each one
of these businesses gave very generously to our summer reading program. WPL thanks all of
our sponsors that helped enrich literacy and engagement this summer. Our summer reading
program participation increased this year, with 562 registered readers, 350 youth, 118 teens,
and 95 adults. This year we wanted adults demonstrating and modeling literacy to our youth,
and it was a great success. Reading logs that were turned in represents approximately 273
books read by adults, 485 hours of reading by teens, and 1,520 hours by our youth reading,
listening to stories, exploring, learning about new cultures, and chasing curiosity.
The summer reading program appreciation events included Once Upon a Field Day, The
Raptor Program, and the Foam Party and there were large participation numbers, so we had to
be mindful of occupancy limits. These events could not have been as successful and organized
without our faithful volunteers and patrons.
These younger members of our community are currently engaging in the creation of a pilot
journalism program, Wellington Broadcasting Corporation or WBC. Solely supported by
WPL and the generous engagement of local businesses and non-profits, this program will be
entirely developed, designed, coordinated, and managed by youth with their voice, narrative,
and perspective. There are writers, photographers, readers, editors, artists, and reporters.
Finally, our summer wrap-up cannot exclude the Robotics Demo and Event. WPL partnered
with the robotics teams from Liberty Common High School and the CSU Engineering
Department to bring STEM to WPL in a hands-on and tactile experience and we could not be
more thrilled by the reception of all ages and continued interest in more. The event
demonstrated a full pathway from young to university age in regard to Robotics, Engineering,
3D prints, problem-solving methods and Battle Bots. The word is continuing to spread that
WPL supports and encourages excitement, curiosity, screams of delight, and engaged noise
and we all had that at the Robotics event. We deeply thank Mrs. Lannen and the engaging
high schoolers that shared their original award-winning robots and even let our youth drive the
bots and attack one another. This event sparked so much curiosity and interest, we are
currently and continuing to work alongside CSU in creating a Field Trip to the CSU campus to
explore even more labs and opportunities in Engineering.
From these shared examples of successful engagement and access all WPL numbers have
increased.
 New patrons – increased
 Patronage – increased
 Circulation – increased
 Access for all – increased
 Event participation – increased
The WPL staff have been busy this quarter as much happens behind the scenes. Currently, as
we inquire and respond to the communities needs as efficiently as possible, we are working on
technology initiatives at county, state, and federal levels that can bring improved access to our
residents and patrons. This could include expanded broadband, e-readers, tablets, and other
technology to connect our patrons to accessible and user-friendly platforms. We are
collaborating with Meridian Trust Federal Credit Union in developing and providing access to
financial wellness classes and programs. Dungeons and Dragons nights, Painting classes,
Dewey Dating, Music and movies at WPL park, local author evenings and coming at the end
3735 Cleveland Ave | PO Box 127 | Wellington, CO 80549 | WellingtonColorado.gov
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of this month, an interactive demonstration of our water treatment process and ways in which
to conserve our resources.
e.

C.

CONSENT AGENDA
1.

D.

Quarterly Parks and Recreation Update
Due to technical difficulties, the Quarterly Parks and Recreation Update has been moved to a
future meeting.

Minutes of the July 27, 2021 regular Board of Trustees meeting
Trustee Whitehouse moved to approve the consent calendar; Trustee Jerome seconded the
motion. Roll call on the vote resulted as follows:
Yeas – Gaiter, Jerome, Kinney, Macdonald, Whitehouse, Hamman
Nays – None
Abstain – Knutson
Motion carried.

ACTION ITEMS
1.

Resolution No. 23-2021 - A Resolution Authorizing Participation in the 2021 Coordinated Election
and Approving the Intergovernmental Agreement for 2021 Coordinated Election Between the Town
of Wellington and Larimer County
Ms. Eucker informed the Board that the Town of Wellington will be holding a special election on
November 2, 2021. One option to conduct that special election is to coordinate election services
with Larimer County.
Resolution 23-2021 provides formal action to participate in the 2021 coordinated election as well as
approves an intergovernmental agreement between the Town of Wellington and Larimer County
which outlines the duties of the entities.
Estimated costs to coordinate with Larimer County are $4,515.41 - $13,018.73 depending on other
participating entities and actual election costs.
Trustee Kinney commented that in conversations with community groups, their thoughts on having
separate ballots and different polling locations would be confusing to voters; they believed all the
items would be on the same ballot.
Trustee Gaiter commented that he still has concerns with elections although in conversations with
the County Clerk, she was able to ease some concerns. A lingering concern is that if there needs to
be a recount for an unforeseen reason, the entire election will need to be recounted instead of just
recounting Wellington ballots and he would personally prefer to have the ability to retain the ability
to address those specifically if need be. Trustee Giater is also concerned about the unknown costs as
it feels like writing a blank check.
Mayor Hamman inquired if someone protests the election and the votes needed to be recounted, is
that an issue.
Ms. Eucker stated if someone requested a recount, that would be paid for by whomever
requested the recount.
Trustee Jerome inquired that since the ballot issues are unique to the Town of Wellington, why
would all the ballots need to be recounted.
3735 Cleveland Ave | PO Box 127 | Wellington, CO 80549 | WellingtonColorado.gov

Page 13 of 94

Trustee Gaiter stated not all Wellington ballots are collected together as they are collecting
ballots from all over the county at the same time.
Trustee Whitehouse inquired as to what type issues Trustee Gaiter has concerns about that would
warrant a recount.
Trustee Gaiter stated he didn’t know if there would be a specific issue and hopes that there is
not one. There are a members of the community, Trustee Gaiter included that are on edge
about elections.
Trustee Whitehouse commented that he has done research and from what he has found, there
have been 11 instances that found some irregularities since 2013. Colorado is the gold
standard for mail ballot election and feels that there are not issues with the county.
Trustee Kinney commented that she is highly competent in the capability of the coordinated
election.
Mayor Hamman inquired if there is a protest, would that be the Town of Wellington paying that cost
or the protesting party.
Ms. Eucker stated it would be the protesting party.
Mayor Hamman opened the meeting for public comment.
Janice Burns addressed the Board and commented that the Colorado Secretary of State enacted an
emergency rule to ban third party audits of our elections and is concerned that if there is no fraud,
what is being hidden. The Secretary is also proposing sweeping new rules into her emergency
ruling that would significantly jeopardize election security at the state and county level. In the 2020
election, there was major enthusiasm for people to vote. Then massive election fraud in the nation,
state and possibly the county. After that, there were many that said they would never vote again
because their vote obviously didn’t matter. Ms. Burns commented that the county clerk is honest
and doing a good job although believes the system itself is very flawed and easily vulnerable to
fraud. As a Wellington citizen and voter, Ms. Burns would prefer the election to be run by
Wellington.
Christine Gaiter addressed the Board and commented that it seems the biggest concern of the Board
is confusion of voter although if people are educated, it should not be a problem. A polling place
will let Wellington retain control and paper ballots could be done so residents feel secure about the
election and not have to worry about machines doing the counting. The rulemaking is connected to
the internet, so it is open to security risk.
Mayor Hamman inquired as to the cost of Wellington conducted its own election.
Ms. Eucker stated it would be $18,000-$20,000.
Mayor Hamman commented that he wants to see maximum participation in the election and people
are not coming to the polling places, they are mailing their ballots in.
Trustee Kinney moved to approve Resolution 23-2021; Trustee Macdonald seconded the
motion. Roll call on the vote resulted as follows:
Yeas – Jerome, Kinney, Macdonald, Whitehouse, Knutson, Hamman
Nays – Gaiter
Motion carried.
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2.

Ordinance No. 09-2021 - An Ordinance Providing for a Special Election by the Town of
Wellington, Colorado, Referring the Question of Whether a One Percent (1%) Sales and Use Tax
Previously Approved by the Voters for the Construction and Reconstruction of Wellington Streets
may also be Used to Pay Costs Associated with Development and Maintenance of Wellington Parks,
Trails and Open Spaces
Mr. Sapienza informed the Board that in 1998 the voters approved a 1% sales tax for streets in
Wellington and that does not sunset. In 2011, the voters decided to allow part of the 1% to be used
for parks and that allowance for parks is expiring this year. This resolution would allow the split to
continue between streets and parks and the 1% sales tax itself is not expiring.
Trustee Macdonald inquired as to how much longer does the Town have on the park bond.
Mr. Sapienza stated the balance of the bond is approximately $780,000 so that will be about
three more years.
Trustee Jerome inquired if the Town would be able to put this on the coordinated ballot with the
County.
Mr. Sapienza stated if the Board approves this resolution it will go on the same ballot.
Trustee Whitehouse confirmed that this would not increase taxes, it is simply about the allocation of
the funds.
Mr. Sapienza stated it would not change the tax rate at all, it would allow the possible
allocation of those funds.
Trustee Kinney reiterated that this will not raise taxes in Wellington.
Mr. Sapienza stated this ballot measure in no way raises taxes for Wellington residents.
Trustee Gaiter inquired if we know how much it will costs to educate the residents on this measure.
Trustee Macdonald repeated a response from the audience that it could be approximately
$2,000 to do an insert in the water bills and for printing additional handbills.
Mayor Hamman opened the meeting for public comment.
Christine Gaiter commented that her concern is the education piece and would want that to be just
the facts and not one sided. Taxpayers shouldn’t be paying for what they vote for. Why does there
need to be money spent on education as it is explained in the question.
Trustee Macdonald moved to approve Ordinance 09-2021; Mayor Pro Tem Knutson seconded
the motion. Roll call on the vote resulted as follows:
Yeas – Gaiter, Jerome, Kinney, Macdonald, Whitehouse, Knutson, Hamman
Nays – None
Motion carried.

E.

REPORTS
1.

Town Attorney
None.

2.

Town Administrator
Ms. Garca commented that the Magellan survey will come back to the Board at a future work
session to discuss. It will be recommended that a survey be done every two years which rolls along
with the strategic plan and budgeting.
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The next meeting is a work session on August 17th and the topics covered that night will be the
wastewater treatment financing, board and commission, future streets project, non-residential water
rates and the ozone equipment for the water treatment plant.
3.

Staff Communications
a.

4.

July 2021 - Report of Bills

Board Reports
Trustee Macdonald attended the Boys and Girls Club Larimer County Youth Forum and strongly
encourage the Town to reach out to host the forum. It was really insightful and engaging as the
youth provided comments very intelligently and provided a perspective of the impacts of COVID on
them.
Trustee Kinney commented that the Wellington Chamber of Commerce is hosting a Women of
Wellington event on August 18th and would like to extend that invitation to anyone interested.
Also, Well-O-Rama was last weekend and it was wonderful to see everyone in the park. The
Wellington parks and public works department were a great help for the event.
Trustee Gaiter commented that in a conversation with Commissioner Kefalas he learned that there
was an email from members of the Hispanic community regarding a regional bus connection from
Fort Collins to Wellington as that is a major concern for them. Commissioner Kefalas inquired if
that is something the Wellington Trustees would like to revisit.
Trustee Gaiter did review with the CAC the ground rules that the Board of Trustees had set up
which was well received.
Trustee Gaiter and Ms. Garcia will be meeting with members of the Hispanic community at their
request next week.
Trustee Kinney gave a reminder that Commissioner Kefalas does have a monthly meeting on the
first Thursday of the month at 7:00 a.m. at the T-Bar for residents to have discussions with the
Commissioner.

F.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
1.

For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations,
developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators pursuant to Section 24-6402(4)(e), C.R.S. – regarding negotiations with North Poudre Irrigation Company. As required by
C.R.S. §24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(A) and (II) (E) the executive session proceedings will be electronically
recorded and the record will be preserved for 90 days through November 9, 2021.
Trustee Macdonald moved to go into executive session for the purpose of determining
positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for
negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators pursuant to Section 24-6-402(4)(e), C.R.S. –
regarding negotiations with North Poudre Irrigation Company; Trustee Jerome seconded the
motion. Roll call on the vote resulted as follows:
Yeas – Gaiter, Jerome, Kinney, Macdonald, Whitehouse, Knutson, Hamman
Nays – None
Motion carried.
The Board of Trustees moved into executive session at 8:38 p.m.

3735 Cleveland Ave | PO Box 127 | Wellington, CO 80549 | WellingtonColorado.gov
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No official action was taken during the executive session.
Trustee Jerome moved to close the executive session; Trustee Gaiter seconded the motion. Roll
call on the vote resulted as follows:
Yeas – Gaiter, Jerome, Kinney, Macdonald, Whitehouse, Knutson, Hamman
Nays – None
Motion carried.
The Board of Trustees closed the executive session at 9:11 p.m.
G.

ADJOURN
Upon a motion duly made, the meeting was adjourned at 9:12 p.m.

___________________________________
Krystal Eucker, Town Clerk
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Board of Trustees Meeting
Date:
Submitted By:
Subject:

August 24, 2021
Patti Garcia, Town Administrator
Resolution No. 25-2021 - A Resolution Authorizing the Town of Wellington to Enter
into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Wellington Fire Protection District
Regarding the Administrative Waiver of Mutual Fees
 Presentation: Patti Garcia, Town Administrator

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This intergovernmental agreement between the Town and the Wellington Fire Protection District would
establish a fee waiver process between the two entities.
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION
The requested intergovernmental agreement (IGA) for fee waivers sets policy for how those requests between
the Town and Wellington Fire Protection District (WFPD) are handled. As there are several large projects
coming up for the Town of Wellington (water treatment plant and wastewater treatment plant) and WFPD is
preparing to build an additional fire station, both entities felt it prudent to establish what fee waivers could be
done administratively and at what level board approval would be required. The draft agreement allows for the
Town Administrator and the Fire Chief to each have the authorization to waive up to $5,000 in fees requested
per calendar year. For the Town, these fees would generally be related to special event permits as most fees to
WFPD are a pass through for building permits. Any requests beyond the $5,000 annual limit for either entity
would be a formal waiver request to either the Board of Trustees or the Fire District Board of Directors.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Move to approve Resolution No. 25-2021 - A Resolution Authorizing the Town of Wellington to Enter into an
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Wellington Fire Protection District Regarding the Administrative
Waiver of Mutual Fees.
ATTACHMENTS
1.
Resolution - WFPD IGA
2.
TOW WFPD IGA Fee Waiver Agreement
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TOWN OF WELLINGTON
RESOLUTION NO. 25-2021
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF WELLINGTON TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE WELLINGTON FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT REGARDING THE ADMINISTRATIVE WAIVER OF MUTUAL FEES.
WHEREAS, the Town of Wellington and the Wellington Fire Protection District (the “Parties”)
jointly serve the residents of the Town of Wellington due to their overlapping boundaries and
mutually beneficial authorities and services;
WHEREAS, the Parties require payment of various fees, assessments, and charges by residents,
businesses, and other entities within their respective boundaries and said fees, assessments, and
charges are imposed by one Party upon the other;
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to recognize and further the fiscal management and mission of each
Party and enter into an intergovernmental agreement to reduce the fees imposed by one party upon
the other; and
WHEREAS, the Town Board of Trustees of the Town of Wellington has determined that the
Intergovernmental Agreement for Waiver of Fees Assessed by the Town of Wellington and Waiver
of Fees Assessed by The Wellington Fire Protection District provides a beneficial process for
requests for the waiver of fees by either party and also for the administrative waiver of a reasonable
amount of fees each year by the Town Administrator.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN
OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:
The Town is authorized to enter into and the Mayor is authorized to sign the Intergovernmental
Agreement for Waiver of Fees Assessed by the Town of Wellington and Waiver of Fees Assessed
by The Wellington Fire Protection District
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Wellington, Colorado this
24th day of August, 2021.
TOWN OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO
By:______________________________
Troy Hamman, Mayor
ATTEST:
_________________________________
Krystal Eucker, Town Clerk
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR WAIVER OF FEES ASSESSED BY THE TOWN OF WELLINGTON AND WAIVER OF
FEES ASSESSED BY THE WELLINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
1.
PARTIES AND EFFECTIVE DATE. The parties to this Intergovernmental Agreement
regarding the waiving of fees and service charges (“Agreement”) are the WELLINGTON FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT (“District”), a Title 32 Special District, and the TOWN OF
WELLINGTON (“Town”), a Colorado municipal corporation. This Agreement shall be effective as
of
, 2021 (“Effective Date”).
2.
RECITALS AND PURPOSES. The District is a fire protection district which serves the
property and individuals within its District boundaries. The District’s boundaries overlap the
boundaries of the Town. As a result, District projects or activities which take part within the Town
trigger various Town fees, assessments, or charges. As governmental entities, the parties
recognize the importance of fiscal management and public service. The Town has agreed to
memorialize a process for the waiver of some fees, assessments, or charges (“Fees”) on a caseby-case basis after request by the District and the District shall reciprocate. Accordingly, the
parties agree to the following terms and conditions.
3.
REQUEST AND FEE WAIVER PROCESS. The District may submit in writing to the Town
Administrator a request for the Town to waive any Fees for any District project or activity that has
triggered or will trigger the assessment of Fees by the Town. If a waiver is granted for not yet
assessed fees for a future project, such waiver shall expire one year after being granted by the
Town. If such a waiver expires, the District may resubmit a request to the Town Administrator for
renewal of the waiver. The Town Administrator may waive up to $5,000 in total fees per calendar
year at the request of the District, if after consultation with the appropriate Town staff the Town
Administrator believes that the waiver will not negatively impact the provision of services by the
Town. Any request for fee waivers that exceed $5,000 in total in a calendar year will be submitted
by the Town Administrator to the Town Board of Trustees, who may consider the request waiver
and grant or deny on such terms as the Town Board deems appropriate.
The Town may submit in writing to the District a request for the District to waive any Fees for any
Town project or activity that has triggered or will trigger the assessment of Fees by the District. If
a waiver is granted for not yet assessed fees for a future project, such waiver shall expire one
year after being granted by the District. If such a waiver expires, the Town may resubmit a request
to the District for renewal of the waiver. The District may waive up to $5,000 in total fees per
calendar year at the request of the Town, if after consultation with the appropriate District staff
the District believes that the waiver will not negatively impact the provision of services by the
District. Any request for fee waivers that exceed $5,000 in total in a calendar year will be submitted
to the District Board of Directors, who may consider the request waiver and grant or deny on such
terms as the District Board deems appropriate.
4.
TERM AND TERMINATION. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and
shall remain in effect for ten (10) years unless terminated by either party, upon ninety (90) days
written notice to the other party of its intent to terminate.
5.
FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS. All financial obligations of the parties under this Agreement
are contingent upon appropriation, budgeting, and availability of specific funds to discharge such
obligations. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create a debt or multiple fiscal year
financial obligation of the parties in violation of the limitations set forth in Article X, Section 20 of
the Colorado Constitution, a pledge of credit of the parties, or a collection or payment guarantee
by the parties.
Page 1 of 3
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6.
PARAGRAPH CAPTIONS. The captions of the paragraphs are set forth only for
convenience and reference, and are not intended in any way to define, limit, or describe the scope
or intent of this Agreement.
7.
ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS OR ACTION. The parties agree to execute any additional
documents and to take any additional action necessary to carry out this Agreement.
8.
INTEGRATION AND AMENDMENT. This Agreement represents the entire agreement
between the parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings. This
Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties. If any
provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, no other provision shall be affected
by such holding, and all of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force
and effect.
9.
ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION. In the event of any dispute or claim arising
under or related to this Agreement, the parties shall use their best efforts to settle such dispute or
claim through good faith negotiations with each other. If such dispute or claim is not settled
through negotiations within thirty (30) days after the earliest date on which one party notifies the
other party in writing of its desire to attempt to resolve such dispute or claim through negotiations,
then the parties agree to attempt in good faith to settle such dispute or claim by mediation
conducted under the auspices of the Judicial Arbiter Group (“JAG”) of Denver, Colorado or, if JAG
is no longer in existence, or if the parties agree otherwise, then under the auspices of a recognized
established mediation service within the State of Colorado. Such mediation shall be conducted
within sixty (60) days following either party’s written request therefor. If such dispute or claim is
not settled through mediation, then either party may initiate a civil action in the District Court for
Larimer County.
10.
ATTORNEYS' FEES. For any dispute arising from or related to this Agreement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.
11.
GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Colorado. Venue for all purposes shall be deemed proper in the District Court for Larimer
County.
12.
NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall
be deemed to have been sufficiently given for all purposes if sent by certified or registered mail,
postage and fees prepaid, addressed to the party to whom such notice is intended to be given at
the last known address, or at such other address as has been previously furnished in writing to
the other party. Such notice shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in the U.S. Mail.
13.
BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the
parties, and their respective legal representatives, successors, and assigns.
14.
NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. No person not a signatory to this Agreement shall
have any right to seek enforcement or declaration of status or rights under this Agreement. No
third-party beneficiaries are intended.
15.
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, or shall be
construed as, a waiver of any immunities provided to the District by statute or common law,
including without limitation the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §24-10-101, et. seq., C.R.S.
[Signature Page Follows]
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The parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

TOWN OF WELLINGTON
By:
ATTESTED:

Mayor

Town Clerk
WELLINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
By:

President

ATTESTED:
Secretary
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Board of Trustees Meeting
Date:
Submitted By:
Subject:

August 24, 2021
Patti Garcia, Town Administrator
Ordinance No. 10-2021 - An Ordinance Repealing, Revising and Readopting Article 13
of Chapter 2 of the Wellington Municipal Code Concerning the Wellington Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board
 Presentation: Patti Garcia, Town Administrator

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
A review of Town of Wellington Advisory Boards and Commissions was conducted at the August 17, 2021
Board of Trustee work session. There were areas related to the current Parks Advisory Board that were
requested to be updated in the municipal code.
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION
In 2020, the recreation department and parks department were molded into one department: the parks and
recreation department.
Currently, the Parks Advisory Board has seven voting members which includes one Trustee serving as a
participating (voting) representative. The term of office is three years; BOT terms coincide with their elected
terms. Membership criteria includes being at least 18 years of age, residency within a seven-mile radius of the
Town, or ownership of a business which operates in the Town and holds a valid business license, or employed
or enrolled in a school operated by the Poudre School District and situated within the boundaries of the Town.
Pursuant to the discussions at the August 17, 2021 work session, the Trustees directed the following updates:
 Change the Parks Advisory Board to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board;
 Update the residency requirement to state a member must live within the Wellington Growth
Management Area (GMA). A review of current members and their addresses shows that all members
live within the established GMA.
 The last change is moving the current Board of Trustee voting member to a liaison member role, and
the addition of one voting member to have an odd number of voting members.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Move to approve Ordinance No. 10-2021 - An Ordinance Repealing, Revising and Readopting Article 13 of
Chapter 2 of the Wellington Municipal Code Concerning the Wellington Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
ATTACHMENTS
1.
Ordinance 10-2021
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TOWN OF WELLINGTON
ORDINANCE NO. 10-2021
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING, REVISING AND READOPTING ARTICLE 13 OF
CHAPTER 2 OF THE WELLINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING THE
WELLINGTON PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD
WHEREAS, on or about June 16, 2014, the Town of Wellington adopted Ordinance 9-2014
establishing the Wellington Parks Advisory Board for the purpose of development and operation
of the Town’s park systems; and
WHEREAS, the Town of Wellington lacks an advisory board related to recreation; and
WHEREAS, the addition of recreation to the Wellington Parks Advisory Board will further
collaboration and alignment with the 2021-2022 Strategic Plan.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN
OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1.
Article 13 of Chapter 2 of the Wellington Municipal Code is hereby repealed in its
entirety and replaced to read as follows:
Article 13 – Wellington Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
Sec. 2-13-10. – Creation; qualification and eligibility.
a) The Board of Trustees hereby creates and establishes to serve the Town the
Wellington Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.
1. The Advisory Board shall consist of seven (7) voting members and one (1)
non-voting liaison member, all of whom shall be residents of the Town or
reside within the Town’s Growth Management Area; if any member ceases
to be eligible due to residency, their membership shall immediately
terminate.
2. Members shall be a minimum of eighteen (18) years of age.
3. Members shall serve without pay.
b) No voting member of the Wellington Parks and Recreation Advisory Board shall
be eligible to serve on more than one other board or commission of the Town during
that member’s tenure on the Wellington Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.
Sec. 2-13-20. – Membership; terms; appointment and removal.
a) The Wellington Parks and Recreation Advisory Board shall be composed of
members from the following constituencies and for the following terms:
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1. The seven (7) voting members shall be appointed as members at large by
the Board of Trustees. At-large members shall be appointed to serve a term
of four (4) years and such terms shall be staggered.
2. The Mayor shall appoint one (1) member from the Board of Trustees as a
nonvoting liaison member. This member's term shall be shall be
conterminous with that member's term on the Board of Trustees.
b) Members of the Advisory Board may be removed from office for inefficiency,
neglect of duty, or malfeasance, upon written notice and after public hearing held
during a regular or special Board of Trustees meeting. The removal of any
Wellington Parks and Recreation Advisory Board member shall require the
affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Trustees participating in the public
hearing.
c) The Board of Trustees shall make such appointments as necessary to fill the
unexpired terms of vacancies which may occur on the Advisory Board, with the
exception of any vacancy left by the nonvoting liaison member, which shall be
filled by appointment by the Mayor.
Sec. 2-13-30. - Meetings.
a) The Wellington Parks and Recreation Advisory Board shall adopt bylaws and rules
for the transaction of business and shall keep a record of its resolutions,
transactions, findings and determinations, which shall be public record.
b) Except as approved by the Board of Trustees, meetings of the Advisory Board shall
be held at the Leeper Center. Notice of the time and place of meetings shall be
posted as required by state law.
c) The Advisory Board shall have regular meetings once per month. Special meetings
may be called by the Chair at the request of two (2) members.
d) Four (4) members of the Advisory Board shall constitute a quorum to do business
at all meetings.
e) The Advisory Board shall keep minutes of its meetings and transactions.
f) Except for such provisions as are herein expressly provided for, the Advisory
Board shall have power to make reasonable rules and bylaws for the conduct of
its business.
Sec. 2-13-40. - Voting.
A simple majority is necessary for passage of all items brought before the
Wellington Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. No member shall vote or act by
proxy,
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Sec. 2-13-50. - Functions.
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board shall perform the following functions:
1) Advise and make recommendations to the Board of Trustees concerning rules,
regulations, policies, planning, administration, design and upgrade and, to the
extent so charged by the Board of Trustees, budgetary matters pertaining to the
development and maintenance of parks within and proximate to the Town of
Wellington, including matters relating to establishing, enhancing, and maintaining
Town-owned recreational amenities including parks, trail systems, and park
features but excluding the Library, which is overseen by the Library Board, and the
cemetery.
2) Explore and make recommendations supporting and identifying grant opportunities
to allow the Town to enhance recreational opportunities in the Town.
3) Advise the Board of Trustees in matters involving cooperation with the Poudre
School District, Larimer County Boys and Girls Club and other organizations and
individuals interested in parks and recreational programs serving the Town.
4) Assist the Board of Trustees in the preparing and maintaining the Wellington Parks
and Trails Masterplan(s) as adopted by the Board of Trustees.
5) Promote community awareness and understanding of, and appreciation for, the
value of parks and recreation as a resource contributing to the quality of life in
Wellington.
6) The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board shall have no authority to expend funds
or make contracts on behalf of the Town.
Section 2.
Any member of the Parks Advisory Board at the time of adoption of this Ordinance
who does not meet the newly established residency requirements for membership on the Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board may continue to serve as a member of the Parks and Recreation
Advisory Board until the conclusion of that member’s current term. After the expiration of that
member’s current term, unless the member’s residency status changes, that member will be
ineligible for renewal of their membership.
Section 3.
The Board of Trustees declares that, should any provision, section, paragraph,
sentence or word of this Ordinance be rendered or declared invalid by any final court action in a
court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any preemptive legislation, the remaining
provisions. sections, paragraphs, sentences, or words of this Ordinance as hereby adopted shall
remain in full force and effect.
Section 4.
All the provisions of the Wellington Municipal Code as heretofore adopted that
conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed as of the effective date of this
Ordinance.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Wellington, Colorado and
ordered published this 24th day of August, 2021 and ordered to become effective 30 days from the
date of publication.
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TOWN OF WELLINGTON, COLORADO
By:______________________________
Troy Hamman, Mayor
ATTEST:
_________________________________
Krystal Eucker, Town Clerk
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Board of Trustees Meeting
Date:
Submitted By:
Subject:

August 24, 2021
Judy Tippetts, Finance Director
2020 Audit Presentation
 Presentation: Tyra Litzau, CPA

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The Town of Wellington 2020 Audit will be presented by Tyra Litzau, CPA, Audit Director BDO.
The report accompanying the financial statements was issued by BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability
partnership and the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee.
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION
The 2020 Financial Audit is being presented to the Board of Trustees for acceptance.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Informational purposes.
ATTACHMENTS
1.
Updated Audit (1)
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Town of Wellington, Colorado
Financial Statements and Supplementary
Information
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

ft
ra

D
The report accompanying these financial statements was issued by
BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member of BDO
International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Board of Trustees
Town of Wellington, Colorado
Opinions
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Wellington, Colorado (the
“Town”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

D

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Wellington, Colorado as of December 31,
2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
Basis for Opinions

ft
ra

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
Town and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town’s ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to be
issued.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
%'286$//3D'HODZDUHOLPLWHGOLDELOLW\SDUWQHUVKLSLVWKH86PHPEHURI%'2,QWHUQDWLRQDO/LPLWHGD8.FRPSDQ\OLPLWHGE\JXDUDQWHHDQGIRUPVSDUWRI
WKHLQWHUQDWLRQDO%'2QHWZRUNRILQGHSHQGHQWPHPEHUILUPV
%'2LVWKHEUDQGQDPHIRUWKH%'2QHWZRUNDQGIRU HDFKRIWKH%'20HPEHU)LUPV
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omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

D

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Town’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

Other Matters

ft
ra

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 16 and the budgetary comparison information on pages 47 and
48 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison information on pages 49
through 53 and the Local Highway Finance Report on pages 54 and 55 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

2
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The budgetary comparison information and Local Highway Finance Report are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Greeley, Colorado
August XX, 2021
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Basic Financial Statements
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
As management of the Town of Wellington, we offer readers of the Town of Wellington’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Wellington for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020.
Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the additional information furnished
in the Basic Financial Statements, Notes to the Basic Financial Statements and Supplementary Information.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
•

The assets of the Town of Wellington exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of 2020 by
$102,196.837. Of this amount, $41,412,932 may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

•

The Town’s total net position increased by $8,661,697 from the prior year. Net investment in Capital assets
increased by $2,168,429. Non-capital assets increased by $6,957,620

•

At the end of calendar year 2020, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $2,853,513, a decrease of
$1,844,338. This amount is 42.875 percent of total general fund expenditures of $6,655,302.

•

The Town retired $1,782,412 of its debt excluding compensatory absences computations during the fiscal year. The
key factor in this decrease was the semi-annual and annual principal payments made on the Town’s outstanding
debts shown in Footnote 6, pages 41 and 42 of this report. The Town did increase outstanding debt during 2019 by
$24.8 million in the water fund, excluding compensatory absences.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Wellington’s basic financial statements.
The Town of Wellington’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information that supports the basic financial statements.
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with
a broad overview of the Town of Wellington’s finances. These statements are prepared in a manner similar to a privatesector business using the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus.
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Town of Wellington’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the difference between the categories reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town of
Wellington is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town of Wellington’s net position changed during the
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).
Both government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of Wellington that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business type activities). The governmental activities of the
Town of Wellington include general government, public safety, public works, community development, culture, parks, and
recreation. The business-type activities of the Town of Wellington include water, sewer and storm drainage operations.
The government-wide financial statements include only the Town of Wellington itself (known as the primary government).
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 20-21 of this report.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of Wellington, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
All funds of the Town of Wellington can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds.
Governmental funds. Most of the Town’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending. The funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental funds statements provide a detailed shortterm view to cash, the governmental fund operations and the basic services it provides. These statements help one
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
Town’s programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of
Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds are described in reconciliations on page 21
and 23.
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 to 23 of this report.
Proprietary funds. The Town of Wellington currently maintains one type of proprietary fund, called enterprise
funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The Town of Wellington uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer, water
and storm drainage operations.
Business-type activities are reported providing the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The business-type financial statements provide separate information for sewer,
water and storm drainage operations, which are major enterprise funds of the Town of Wellington.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements detailing the business-type activities can be found on pages 24 to
26 of this report.
Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the Town.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the Town of Wellington’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds. Additional information on the Town’s Fiduciary Fund (Library Trust Fund)
can be found on pages 27 and 28 of this report.
Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide significant additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 29 to 46 of this report.
Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
required and certain other supplementary information concerning the Town of Wellington’s budget comparison
statements for the General Fund, non-major Conservation Trust Fund and the Town’s three major enterprise funds
Water, Sewer and Storm Drainage. The other supplementary information can be found on pages 47 to 53 of this
report.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN AS A WHOLE
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of the Town of Wellington, net position exceeded liabilities by $102,196,837 at the close of 2020.
By far the largest portion of the Town of Wellington’s net position (57.70 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding and accumulated depreciation. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Unrestricted net position may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Below is
condensed financial information for fiscal year 2020 compared with 2019 totals.
Condensed Statement of Net Position

ASSETS

2020
BusinessType
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Totals

2019 Totals

Current assets

$18,274,301

$55,943,990

$74,218,291

$67,260,671

Capital assets

22,496,264

39,589,217

62,085,481

59,917,052

95,533,207

136,303,772

127,177,723

Total assets

40,770,565
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

3,601,684

2,825,162

6,426,846

4,190,805

Long-term liabilities

1,027,947

25,033,076

26,061,023

27,934,014

Total liabilities

4,629,631

27,858,238

32,487,867

32,124,819

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue - property taxes

1,532,458

86,608

1,619,066

1,517,764

21,226,013

37,760,001

58,986,014

54,996,250

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Emergencies

306,349

-

306,349

231,273

Other purposes

585,808

905,734

1,491,542

1,389,979

12,490,306

28,922,626

41,412,932

36,917,638

$34,608,476

$67,588,361

$102,196,837

$93,535,140

Unrestricted
Total net position

Exclusive of capital assets, the restricted portion ($1,797,891) of net position (4.167 percent), represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted
net position ($41,412,932) may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The following focuses on changes in net position of the Town’s governmental and business-type
activities.
Condensed Statement of Activities
2020

Revenues

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Totals

2019 Totals

Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues
Property taxes
Open space taxes

$1,091,206

$4,461,828

$5,553,034

$4,709,109

101,678

-

101,678

108,361

-

7,398,706

7,398,706

3,914,316

-

-

-

-

1,426,728

85,593

1,512,321

1,196,785

284,181

-

284,181

250,916

3,652,434

-

3,652,434

2,740,101

Franchise fees

184,840

-

184,840

183,780

Highway users tax

250,749

-

250,749

327,548

Sales and use taxes

Other taxes

1,248,239

-

1,248,239

1,325,843

Impact fees

1,386,834

672,640

2,059,474

950,127

575,304

-

575,304

5,336

Earnings on investments

85,971

201,501

287,472

851,302

Other

25,646

2,160

27,806

48,652

1,301,196

(1,301,196)

0

17,000

23,136,238

16,629,176

Grants, undesignated

Transfers

Total revenues & transfers

11,615,006

11,521,232

Expenses
General government

3,093,413

-

3,093,413

2,107,247

Public safety

1,435,696

-

1,435,696

1,442,249

Public works

2,450,299

-

2,450,299

2,281,918

Parks and recreation

1,026,780

-

1,026,780

929,982

Economic development

163,624

-

163,624

221,134

Library

187,449

-

187,449

184,081

-

-

-

0

Small equipment
Interest on long-term debt

32,259

-

32,259

37,834

Water

-

3,772,403

3,772,403

2,640,768

Sewer

-

1,412,745

1,412,745

1,203,5009

Storm drainage

-

899,727

899,727

638,801

Total expenses

8,389,520

6,084,875

14,474,395

11,687,493

Change in net position

3,225,486

5,436,357

8,661,843

4,941,683

31,382,990

62,152,004

93,534,994

88,593,457

$34,608,476

$67,588,361

$102,196,837

$93,535,140

Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A portion of the “Net position at end of year” net position shown in the above Condensed Statement of
Activities is restricted for specific purposes. The restrictions represent legal or contractual limitations on
how the assets may be expensed. Within the governmental activities category restrictions are placed for
streets and park improvements, TABOR emergency reserve and other purposes. The business-type
activities restrictions were related to the operation and maintenance reserve required by loan agreements.
Expenditures for the governmental activities are displayed below.
Expenditures for the governmental activities displayed in the previous table for 2020 are shown in
graphical form below. For comparative purposes, the figures from 2019 are included. As the Town continues
to grow, increasing costs in these activities will likely trend higher.

3,500,000

PROGRAM EXPENDITURES - GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

3,000,000

2,500,000

2,000,000

1,500,000

1,000,000

500,000

0

General
Gov.

Public
Safety

Public
Works

Parks &
Rec.

Economic
Dev.

Library

Small
Equip.

Int. L-T
Debt

2020 Expenditures 3,093,413

1,435,696

2,450,299

1,026,780

163,624

187,449

37,434

32,259

2019 Expenditures 2,107,247

1,442,249

2,281,918

929,982

221,134

184,051

56,538

37,834
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following chart displays revenues categorized by source for the governmental activities.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The following chart displays revenues and expenses of the Business-type Activities.

$6,000,000

$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

$0

Water

Sewer

Storm

Operating Revenues

$2,410,129

$1,431,521

$620,178

Operating and interest
Expenses

$3,772,403

$1,412,745

$899,727

Impact Fees

$5,356,216

$2,042,490

Operating and interest expenses were greater than operating revenues in the water fund and storm
drainage funds. Operating and interest expenses in the sewer fund were slightly lower than revenues. All
the business-type activities funds include significant non-cash expenses. The operating expenses include
depreciation. Depreciation is an estimate of the deterioration of fixed assets. There was no actual cash
expenditure involved in “depreciation expense”. Non-cash depreciation was $747,186, $542,919 and
$116,322 in the Water, Sewer and Storm Drainage Funds respectively. After deducting the non-cash
depreciation in the Water Fund, operating expenses exceeded operating revenues by $936,317.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The following chart presents the revenues and contributions by source for the business-type activities
(enterprise funds). The largest source of revenue is entitled “Capital Grants & Contributions” (57.70%).
This category consists of Raw Water Fees, Tap Fees and Infrastructure Dedications in the Water and
Sewer Funds in the amount of $7,398,706. The total amount of Capital Grants & Contributions in 2019
was $3,914,316.

Revenue & Contributions By Source - Business
Type Activities
Property Taxes
.67%

Investment
Earnings
1.57%
Other Revenue
.02%

Impact
Fees
5.25%

Charges for Services
34.8%

Capital Grants &
Contrib.
57.70%

Financial Analysis of the Town’s Funds
As noted earlier, the Town of Wellington uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.
Governmental funds. The focus of the Town of Wellington’s governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the Town of Wellington’s financing requirements. Unassigned fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of
the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Wellington’s governmental funds (General, Street, Park and
Conservation Trust Funds) reported combined ending fund balances of $13,530,012, an increase of
$2,971,806. Approximately 21% of this total amount ($2,853,513) constitutes unassigned fund balance,
which is available for spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is otherwise
classified to indicate that it is not available for new spending because the asset itself is in a non-spendable
form (e.g., inventories) or that portions of fund balance have been restricted, committed or assigned to
specific purposes as follows:
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Nonspendable:
Restricted:
Committed:
Assigned:
Unassigned:

$7,160
$892,157
$57,118
$9,720,064
$2,853,513

TOTAL:

$13,530,012

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The General Fund accounts for all the general services provided by the Town of Wellington. At the end of
2020, the fund balance of the General Fund totaled $7,078,957, an increase of $1,226,607 or 20.95%, over
the fund balance at the end of 2019, $5,852,350. The General Fund’s primary source of revenue is taxes
and to a lesser degree, fees. The General Fund receives nearly all the property taxes, and two thirds of
the sales tax.

Taxes & Fees,
81.77%

Licenses &…

Intergovernmental
6.56%
Charges for Services, 1.93%
Miscellaneous,
Investment
0.25%
Earnings, 0.83%

Fines & Forfeits,
0.08%
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
General Fund expenditures include all administrative functions of the Town, comprised of the Board of
Trustees, Town Administrator, Town Attorney, Finance Director, and all other administrative support staff.
Public Safety at 17.15% of the total expended is the third largest expenditure for the General Fund.
Public Safety includes amounts paid to Larimer County Sheriff’s Office, $1,435,696. The total of all Public
Safety was $1,442,249 in 2019. General Fund expenditures by type are presented below in graphical
form.

EXPENDITURES BY TYPE - GENERAL FUND
Library
2.24%
Economic Dev.
1.95%
Park & Rec.
9.54%

Capital Outlay
15.32%

General Gov.
36.10%

Public Works
17.70%
Public Safety
17.15%
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION
Capital assets. The Town of Wellington’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business type activities as of December 31, 2020, amounts to $62,085,481 (net of accumulated
depreciation and debt). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system
improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, and bridges. At December 31,
2019, the net investment in capital assets was $59,920,052 (net of accumulated depreciation and debt).
Net investment in capital assets decreased 3.61 percent from 2019 to 2020.

Town of Wellington’s Capital Assets at Year End
(net of depreciation,) compared to 2019
Governmental
Activities
2020
2019
Land:
Water Rights:
Water Delivery
Rights:
Buildings &
Improvements:
Improvements
Other Than
Buildings:
Streets &
Improvements:
Machinery &
Equipment:
Utility Systems &
Equipment:
Construction in
Progress:

TOTAL

Business-Type
Activities
2020
2019

TOTAL
2020

2019

1,359,666

1,359,666

119,233

119,233

1,478,899

1,478,899

160,380

160,380

-

-

160,380

160,380

-

-

4,807,437

2,795,637

4,807,437

2,795,637

992,407

505,416

-

-

992,407

8,917,132

9,024,271

-

-

8,917,132

9,024,271

10,658,295

11,029,215

-

-

11,029,215

293,489

262,359

-

-

10,658,295
293,489

-

-

32,426,838

32,481,362

32,426,838

32,481,362

114,895

114,895

2,235,711

2,064,621

2,350,606

2,179,516

22,496,264

22,456,199

39,589,217

37,460,853

62,085,481

59,920,052

505,416

262,356

Additional information on the Town of Wellington’s capital assets can be found in footnote 5 on pages 39
and 40 of this report.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Long-term debt. At the end of 2020, the Town of Wellington had total debt outstanding of $25,889,757.
The FNB Wellington Community Park Fund Loan was approved by the Town’s voters and is a special
obligation payable out of the available funds and revenues of the Park Fund. The remainder of the Town
of Wellington’s debt represents bonds and loans secured solely by specified revenue sources (Water &
Sewer Fund revenues – i.e., Charges for Services).
Town of Wellington’s Outstanding Debt at Year End
Governmental

Business-Type

Activities

Activities

2020
FNB WCP Loan (Park Fund):

2019

2020

TOTAL
2019

2020

2019

$1,270,251

$1,506,850

-

-

$1,270,251

$1,506,850

1984 General Obligation Bonds (Water Fund):

-

-

$ 80,000

$104,000

$ 80,000

$104,000

1982 CWCB General Obligation Bonds (Water Fund):

-

-

$159,828

$210,879

$159,828

$210,879

2001 CWR&PDA Loan (Water Fund):

-

-

$105,975

$173,207

$105,975

$173,207

2002 CWR&PDA Loan (Sewer Fund):

-

-

$656,191

$947,923

$656,191

$947,923

2014 Bond Issue - WWTP Expansion (Sewer Fund):

-

-

$1,880,000

$1,985,000

$1,880,000

$1,985,000

2019 CWR&PDA Loan (Water Fund):

-

-

$23,007,763

$24,014,561

$23,007,763

$24,014,561

$1,270,251

$1,506,850

$25,889,757

$27,435,570

$27,160,008

$28,942,420

TOTAL

This outstanding debt does not include compensated absences of $145,104 at the end of 2020.
Additional information on the Town of Wellington’s long-term debt can be found in footnote 6, pages 41-42.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES
The Annual Budget guides the efficient, effective and economic use of the Town’s resources, as well as
focus on the highest priority objectives. Through the Budget, the Town Council sets the direction, allocates
resources and establishes priorities.
The Town Council approved the 2020 Budget on December 13, 2019, appropriating $61,793,090 for
expenditures in 2020. The initial 2019 appropriation was $32,565,073. The 2020 initial Budget reflects a
90% increase from the 2019 initial Budget, largely due to an aggressive capital improvement plan which
includes the initial stages of the Water Treatment Plant Expansion and Water Source Development.
The Town of Wellington received and disbursed $552,720 of Coronavirus relief funds during 2020.
Summary of Cares Funding
Business Relief Grants and Signage to local businesses:

$349,353.20

63.21%

Residential Utility Grants – 140 individual accounts;

$ 89,356,45

16.17%

Telework – computers, iPad support for remote workers:

$ 35,617.49

6.44%

Public Works – chemicals, storage containers:

$ 33,622.00

6.08%

Audio Visual for virtual meetings:

$ 23,877.62

4.32%

IGA with Larimer County for Covid Testing:

$ 20,000.00

3.62%

PPE supplies, masks, gloves, hand sanitizer:

$

893.24

.16%

Wellington’s plan to construct a new Town Hall is currently on hold as the Town seeks to secure a
location. Meanwhile, the Town continues to add staff to keep up with our growing community. The 2020
budget included 3.0 new full-time equivalents along with additional space secured by leasing a second
building in Town. However, until a new Town Hall is constructed, the Town will be challenged to find
sufficient workspace for staff.

Contacting the Town’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Wellington’s finances for all
those with an interest in the Town’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Tyler Sexton, Town of
Wellington Assistant Finance Director, sextontc@wellingtoncolorado.gov, PO Box 127, 3735 Cleveland
Ave., Wellington, Colorado 80549
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Town of Wellington
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2020

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Loan proceeds receivable

Internal balances
Inventory
Prepaid items
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total assets

D

Business-Type
Activities

Total

$ 13,451,155
2,331,533
2,064,453
420,000
7,160
-

$ 25,344,931
4,618,234
641,649
24,800,000
(420,000)
53,442
905,734

$ 38,796,086
6,949,767
2,706,102
24,800,000
53,442
7,160
905,734

1,634,941
20,861,323

7,162,382
32,426,835

8,797,323
53,288,158

40,770,565

95,533,207

136,303,772

3,211,831
2,445
-

1,021,037
207,985
-

4,232,868
210,430
-

ft
ra

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued wages payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Governmental
Activities

145,104
242,304
1,027,947

1,596,140
25,033,076

145,104
1,838,444
26,061,023

4,629,631

27,858,238

32,487,869

Deferred inflows of resources
Unearned revenue - property taxes

1,532,458

86,608

1,619,066

Total deferred inflows of resources

1,532,458

86,608

1,619,066

21,226,013

37,760,001

58,986,014

306,349
585,808
12,490,306

905,734
28,922,626

306,349
585,808
905,734
41,412,932

$ 34,608,476

$ 67,588,361

$ 102,196,837

Total liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Emergencies
Parks and recreation

Rate stabilization and maintenance

Unrestricted
Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Functions/Programs

Expenses

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Economic development
Library
Interest on long-term debt

$

3,093,413
1,435,696
2,450,299
1,026,780
163,624
187,449
32,259

Program Revenues
Operating
Capital
Charges for
Grants and
Grants and
Services
Contributions Contributions
$

162,693
883,620
8,385
36,508
-

$

101,678
-

$

-

8,389,520

1,091,206

101,678

-

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Storm drainage

3,772,403
1,412,745
899,727

2,410,129
1,431,521
620,178

-

5,356,216
2,042,490
-

Total business-type activities

6,084,875

4,461,828

-

7,398,706

14,474,395

$ 5,553,034

101,678

$ 7,398,706

D

Total governmental activities

Total primary government

$

$

ft
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Taxes:
Property taxes levied for general purposes
Property taxes levied for debt service
Open space tax
Sales and use tax
Franchise fees
Highway users tax
Other taxes
Impact fees
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Earnings on investments
Other revenues
Transfers
Total general revenues
Changes in net position
Net position at beginning of year
Net position at end of year
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Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Position
Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

$ (2,930,720) $
(552,076)
(2,441,914)
(888,594)
(163,624)
(187,449)
(32,259)

-

(7,196,636)

-

Total
$

(2,930,720)
(552,076)
(2,441,914)
(888,594)
(163,624)
(187,449)
(32,259)
(7,196,636)

3,993,942
2,061,266
(279,549)

3,993,942
2,061,266
(279,549)

-

5,775,659

5,775,659

(7,196,636)

5,775,659

(1,420,977)

1,426,728
284,181
3,652,434
184,840
250,749
1,248,239
1,386,834
575,304
85,971
25,646
1,301,196

85,593
672,640
201,501
2,160
(1,301,196)

1,426,728
85,593
284,181
3,652,434
184,840
250,749
1,248,239
2,059,474
575,304
287,472
27,806
-

10,422,122

(339,302)

10,082,820
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D

-

3,225,486

5,436,357

8,661,843

31,382,990

62,152,004

93,534,994

$ 34,608,476

$ 67,588,361

$ 102,196,837

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agent
Receivables
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Totals assets

Conservation
Total
Trust
Governmental
(Nonmajor)
Funds

General

Street

Park

$ 7,393,846

$ 2,931,277

$ 2,453,339

$ 585,808

$ 13,364,270

2,022,332

74,198
18,847
-

309,201

1,935,981
420,000
7,160

12,687
109,625
-

-

2,331,533
86,885
2,064,453
420,000
7,160

$ 11,779,319

$ 3,024,322

$ 2,884,852

$ 585,808

$ 18,274,301

$

$

$

D

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable
$ 3,167,904 $
23,469

20,458

-

3,211,831

3,167,904

23,469

20,458

-

3,211,831

Deferred inflows of resources
Unearned revenue - property
taxes
Total deferred inflows of
resources

1,532,458

-

-

-

1,532,458

1,532,458

-

-

-

1,532,458

7,160
306,349
57,118
3,854,817
2,853,513

3,000,853
-

2,864,394
-

585,808
-

7,160
892,157
57,118
9,720,064
2,853,513

7,078,957

3,000,853

2,864,394

585,808

13,530,012

$ 11,779,319

$ 3,024,322

$ 2,884,852

$ 585,808

$ 18,274,301

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources and
fund balances

ft
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Total liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
with the Government-wide Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Total fund balance - governmental funds

$ 13,530,012

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources, and
therefore, are not reported as assets in the governmental fund financial statements.
Capital assets
Accumulated depreciation

$ 41,224,886
(18,728,622)

22,496,264

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources, and
therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. Long-term
liabilities at year end consist of:

D

Loan payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued compensated absences

$ (1,270,251)
(2,445)
(145,104)

Total net position - governmental activities

(1,417,800)
$ 34,608,476

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Revenues
Taxes and impact fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Earnings on investments
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Total
Governmental
Funds

General

Street

Park

$ 4,204,812
775,820
574,804
162,693
8,385
52,943
22,003

$ 2,600,253
107,800
12,738
762

$ 1,628,940
36,508
15,850
2,881

5,801,460

2,721,553

1,684,179

106,618

10,313,810

D

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Economic development
Library
Capital outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Conservation
Trust
(Nonmajor)
$

102,178
4,440
-

$

3,023,219
1,435,696
1,167,484
61,096
163,624
187,449
616,734

314,530
600,522

737,796
65,590

-

3,023,219
1,435,696
1,482,014
798,892
163,624
187,449
1,282,846

-

-

236,745
32,715

-

236,745
32,715

6,655,302

915,052

1,072,846

-

8,643,200

1,806,501

611,333

106,618

1,670,610
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Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over
expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources
(uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of
year
Fund balances at end of year

8,434,005
883,620
676,982
199,201
8,385
85,971
25,646

(853,842)

2,080,449
-

(480,761)

(298,492)

-

2,080,449
1,226,607

(480,761)
1,325,740

(298,492)
312,841

106,618

1,301,196
2,971,806

5,852,350

1,675,113

2,551,553

479,190

10,558,206

$ 7,078,957

$ 3,000,853

$ 2,864,394

$

585,808

$

2,080,449
(779,253)

13,530,012

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances with the Government-wide Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Total net change in fund balance - governmental funds

$

2,971,806

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental funds as
expenditures. However, for governmental activities those costs are shown in the
statement of net position and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual
depreciation expense in the statement of activities. This is the amount by which
depreciation expense exceeded capital outlay during the year.
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

$ 1,282,846
(1,242,781)

40,065

236,745

Decrease in interest payable is reflected against expense in the statement of activities
and not reflected as an expenditure in the statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances.

456

ft
ra

D

Repayment of loan payable obligations are expenditures in the fund financial statements,
but are reductions in long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and do not
affect the statement of activities.

Increase in accrued compensated absences liability is reflected as an expense on the
statement of activities and not reflected as an expenditure on the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances.
Change in net position of governmental activities

$

(23,586)
3,225,486

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2020

Water

Sewer

$ 15,222,635

Accrued interest payable
Accrued wages payable

9,160,274

$

962,022

$ 25,344,931

1,328,001
186,269
1,256
10,675,800

1,083,308
78,338
2,123,668

4,618,234
641,649
24,800,000
53,442
55,458,256

555,734

350,000

-

905,734

36,130
4,807,437
1,923,688
24,001,852
1,080,592
(10,461,803)
21,387,896
21,943,630
64,602,418

83,103
280,617
20,378,673
761,548
(6,098,958)
15,404,983
15,754,983
26,430,783

31,406
3,357,514
14,328
(606,910)
2,796,338
2,796,338
4,920,006

119,233
4,807,437
2,235,711
47,738,039
1,856,468
(17,167,671)
39,589,217
40,494,951
95,953,207
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Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable

$

Total

2,206,925
377,042
24,800,000
52,186
42,658,788

D

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents
Receivables
Loan proceeds receivable
Inventory
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Land
Water rights
Construction in progress
Utilities systems
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets - net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Storm
Drainage

Due to other funds
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Unearned revenue - property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for rate stabilization
Restricted for maintenance
Unrestricted
Total net position

185,369

61,671

773,997

1,021,037

182,006

25,979

-

207,985

-

-

-

-

1,171,521
1,538,896

424,619
512,269

420,000
1,193,997

420,000
1,596,140
3,245,162

22,921,504
22,921,504
24,460,400

2,111,572
2,111,572
2,623,841

1,193,997

25,033,076
25,033,076
28,278,238

86,608
86,608

-

-

86,608
86,608

22,094,871
555,734
17,404,805
$ 40,055,410

12,868,792
350,000
10,588,150
$ 23,806,942

2,796,338
929,671
3,726,009

37,760,001
350,000
555,734
28,922,626
$ 67,588,361

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Water

Operating revenues
Charges for services

$

2,410,129

Storm
Drainage

Sewer

$

1,431,521

$

620,178

Totals
$

4,461,828

Total operating revenues

2,410,129

1,431,521

620,178

4,461,828

Operating expenses
Operating
Small equipment
Depreciation

2,570,697
28,563
747,186

772,640
8,871
542,919

783,405
116,322

4,126,742
37,434
1,406,427

Total operating expenses

3,346,446

1,324,430

899,727

5,570,603
(1,108,775)

(936,317)

107,091

(279,549)

85,593
103,664
(425,957)
449

90,872
(88,315)
1,711

672,640
6,965
-

758,233
201,501
(514,272)
2,160

(236,251)

4,268

679,605

447,622

D

Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Property taxes and impact fees
Earnings on investments
Interest expense
Other non-operating revenue

Changes in net position

ft
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Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before transfers and
contributions
Transfers out
Capital contributions

Net position at beginning of year
Net position at end of year

(1,172,568)
(714,101)
5,356,216

111,359
(487,931)
2,042,490

400,056
(99,164)
-

(661,153)
(1,301,196)
7,398,706

3,469,547

1,665,918

300,892

5,436,357

36,585,863

22,141,024

3,425,117

62,152,004

$ 40,055,410

$ 23,806,942

$ 3,726,009

$ 67,588,361

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments to employees
Net cash flows from operating activities

$

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Property taxes
Impact fees
Transfers out
Other non-operating revenue
Net cash flows from non-capital financing activities

D

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Capital contributions
Acquisitions of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Net cash flows from capital and related
financing activities

Sewer

2,273,569 $
(2,925,094)
(312,448)
(963,973)

1,400,652 $
(418,481)
(363,888)
618,283

Total

613,045 $
(399,355)
213,690

4,287,266
(3,742,930)
(676,336)
(132,000)

86,608
(714,101)
449
(627,044)

(487,931)
1,711
(486,220)

672,640
(99,164)
573,476

759,248
(1,301,196)
2,160
(539,788)

5,356,216
(3,127,938)
(1,149,081)
(475,788)

2,042,490
(368,776)
(396,732)
(106,862)

(38,077)
-

7,398,706
(3,534,791)
(1,545,813)
(582,650)

603,409

1,170,120

(38,077)

1,735,452

103,664
5,055
108,719

90,872
90,872

6,965
6,965

201,501
5,055
206,556
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Cash flows from investing activities
Earnings on investments
Change in restricted cash and cash equivalents
Net cash flows from investing activities

Storm
Drainage

Water

1,270,220

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

(878,889)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

1,393,055

18,308,449

756,054

9,095,220

1,289,276

28,692,945

$

10,488,275

$ 2,045,330

$ 29,963,165

(936,317) $

107,091

$ 17,429,560

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
flows from operating activities
Operating income (loss)

$

Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash flows from
operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventory
Accounts payable
Accrued wages payable
Net cash flows from operating activities

747,186

$

(136,560)
2,536
(635,558)
(5,260)
(963,973) $

$

(279,549) $

542,919

116,322

(30,869)
10,289
(1,895)
(9,252)
618,283 $

(7,133)
384,050
213,690 $

(1,108,775)

1,406,427
(174,562)
12,825
(253,403)
(14,512)
(132,000)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
December 31, 2020

Library Trust
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents, restricted
Total assets
Net position

$

425,294
67,211
492,505

$

492,505

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Library Trust
Additions
Library impact fees
Total additions

$

Change in net position

67,750
67,750
67,750

Net position at beginning of year

424,755

Net position at end of year

$

492,505

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Form of Organization
The Town of Wellington, Colorado (the “Town”) was founded on November 10, 1905 as a statutory town.
The Town’s major operations include general government, public safety, public works, parks and recreation,
economic development, and the library.
The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial principles. The more significant of the Town’s accounting policies are described
below.
Reporting Entity

D

As defined by GAAP established by the GASB, the financial reporting entity consists of the primary
government, as well as component units, which are legally separate organizations for which elected officials
of the primary government are financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as:

ft
ra

1) Appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s governing board and either a) the ability
to impose its will by the primary government, or b) there is a potential for the component unit to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary
government; or
2) Fiscal dependency on the primary government and there is a potential for the organization to
provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the primary government
regardless of whether the organization has (1) a separately elected governing board, (2) a governing
board appointed by a higher level of government, or (3) a jointly appointed board.
Based on the above criteria, there are no other organizations that would be considered component units of
the Town.
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the Town. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported
by taxes, charges for services and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on user charges for support.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to those who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.
The fund financial statements report detailed information about the Town. The focus of governmental fund
financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in
a separate column.
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Town of Wellington
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded
when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

D

The governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using the current financial resources
measurement focus, whereby only current assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources generally are included in the balance sheet, and the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances present increases and decreases in those components. These
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized as soon as they are
both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures generally are recognized when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments are recognized only when payment is due.

ft
ra

Property taxes, intergovernmental grants, and earnings on investments associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual, and so, have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash
is received by the Town.
Because governmental fund statements are presented using a measurement focus and basis of accounting
different from that used in the government-wide statements, reconciliations are presented that briefly
explains the adjustments necessary to reconcile to ending net position and the change in net position.
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Transactions, (“GASB No. 33”) the corresponding assets (receivables) in non-exchange transactions are
recognized in the period in which the underlying exchange occurs, when an enforceable legal claim has
arisen, when all eligibility requirements have been met, or when resources are received, depending on the
revenue source. Property taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied in
December, payable in the following year in full by April 30, or in two equal installments due on the last day
of February and June 15.
Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general activities. The following
are the Town’s major governmental funds:
General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Street Fund - The Street Fund, a special revenue fund, is considered a major fund of the Town.
Revenues in the Street Fund consist of motor vehicle ownership taxes, motor vehicle registration taxes
and highway user taxes. In addition, this fund accounts for impact fees relating to new construction
from building permits. Amounts collected are disbursed for the maintenance of the Town’s streets and
alleys.
Park Fund - The Park Fund, a special revenue fund, is considered a major fund of the Town. Revenues
in the Park Fund consist of sales taxes, use taxes, motor vehicle use taxes, and open space sales taxes.
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Town of Wellington
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020
In addition, this fund accounts for impact fees relating to new construction from building permits.
Amounts collected are disbursed for the maintenance of the Town’s parks and open space.
The other governmental fund (nonmajor fund) is a special revenue fund (Conservation Trust) and has been
established to account for revenues from the Colorado Conservation Trust Fund which are required to be
used to fund park and recreation services.
Proprietary funds, which include enterprise funds, are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. Therefore, all assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources associated with the operation of this fund are
included on the statement of net position. Revenues and expenses are recorded in the accounting period in
which they are earned or incurred, and they become measurable. Net position is segregated into amounts
invested in capital assets, restricted for debt service and rate stabilization loan reserves, and unrestricted.
Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g.,
expenses) in total net position. Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in
the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial
administration. The Town’s major enterprise funds include the Water, Sewer, and Storm Drainage funds.

D
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Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary fund category is
split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds, and
agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the Town under a trust agreement for
individuals, private organizations, or other governments and are therefore not available to support the
Town’s own programs. The Town has one private-purpose trust fund, the Library Trust Fund, which
accounts for library impact fees and grants and disburses funds for the benefit of the Town’s library. Agency
funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of
operations.
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the enterprise funds and various other
functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions concerned.
Budgets

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:


By October 15, the Town Administrator submits to the Town Board of Trustees, a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year beginning the following January 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them;



A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments;



Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution;



Any budget revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Board of
Trustees through passage of a formal resolution;
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Town of Wellington
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020



The Town legally adopts budgets for all of the funds. Budgets for the general, special revenue and
fiduciary funds are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP.
Budgetary comparisons for the
enterprise funds are presented on a non-GAAP budgetary basis, where payments for capital assets
and principal amounts of debt are treated as expenditures, bond proceeds are treated as revenues,
and depreciation is not budgeted;



Budgeted amounts in the financial statements are as originally adopted or as amended by the Town
Board of Trustees. All appropriations lapse at year-end.

The following table summarizes the individual fund budgeted expenditures, as originally adopted, and as
revised:

Governmental funds:
General fund
Special revenue funds:
Street fund
Park fund
Conservation trust fund

$

Fiduciary fund type:
Library trust fund
Total funds

Total

Budget

Revisions

7,613,605

$

1,908,969
1,951,301
-

Final Budget
-
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D

Business type funds:
Water fund
Sewer fund
Storm drainage fund

Original

$

7,613,605
1,908,969
1,951,301
-

23,281,731
3,240,766
745,906

-

23,281,731
3,240,766
745,906

-

-

-

-

$ 38,742,278

$ 38,742,278

$

Cash and Cash Equivalents

To improve cash management, cash received by the Town is pooled and invested. Individual fund integrity is
maintained through the Town’s records. Interest in the pool is presented as “equity in pooled cash and cash
equivalents” on the financial statements. The Town considers all highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, including deposits in a pooled investment fund, to be cash equivalents.
Short-term investments, consisting of funds invested in a local government investment pool (Note 2) are
considered to be cash equivalents and are measured at net asset value, which approximates fair value.
Overdrawn balances in pooled cash accounts are treated by the Town as interfund liabilities, payable to the
fund deemed to have made the loan.
Restricted Cash
The amounts restricted in the Water and Sewer funds are in compliance with the operation and
maintenance reserve and rate stabilization requirements of the loans from the Colorado Water Resource and
Power Development Authority.
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Investments
Investments, consisting of funds invested in certificates of deposit, are measured at fair value in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.
Revenue Recognition/Property Taxes
Property taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied in December,
payable in the following year in full by April 30, or in two equal installments due on the last day of February
and June 15. The county treasurer bills and collects property taxes for all taxing entities within the county.
Property tax receipts collected by the county treasurer each month are remitted to the Town by the tenth
day of the subsequent month. Property tax revenues are recognized in the government-wide financial
statements in the year that the property taxes are used to fund the operations of the Town.
In the fund financial statements, property taxes are recognized in the year for which levied provided they
become available and measurable. Utility service revenue is recognized when the service is provided.

D

Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Inventories

ft
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During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided
or services rendered. These receivables and payables, if any, are classified as internal balances on the
government-wide statement of net position and classified as due from other funds or due to other funds on
the balance sheet.

Inventories, consisting primarily of chemicals used in the treatment process of the Water and Sewer funds,
have been valued at cost on a first-in first-out basis. The consumption method is used to account for
inventories. Inventory costs are recorded as expenditures or expenses when individual inventory items are
consumed.
Bond Premium and Debt Issuance Costs

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities. Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest rate method as principal is paid. Debt issuance costs are recognized during the
period of issuance.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums during the period of
issuance. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums on the debt
issuance are reported as other finance sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service.
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Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.e., streets and roads,
bridges, water lines, storm-water drainage, traffic signals, and similar items) are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value on the date received.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful
lives of the related capital assets, as applicable.
Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the assets estimated useful lives. Depreciation
expense is reflected as an operating expense in the government-wide statement of activities. Estimated
useful lives for asset types are as follows:

D

Description

Compensated Absences

Business-Type

N/A
years
years
years
years
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
5 years
50 years

10-40
5-50
20-40
5-20

ft
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Land and water rights
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Streets and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Utilities systems

Governmental

The Town reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 16,
Accounting for Compensated Absences, (“GASB No. 16”). Personal leave benefits are accrued as a liability
as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to receive compensation are attributable to services
rendered and it is probable that the Town will compensate the employees for the benefits earned. Upon
termination of employment from the Town, an employee will be compensated for all accrued vacation and
compensatory time at their current rate of pay. There is no payment for sick leave upon termination.
Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation pay that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources are reported on the government-wide financial statements. The Town has
recorded a liability of $145,104 at December 31, 2020.
On the governmental fund financial statements, where applicable, the current portion of unpaid
compensated absences is the amount expected to be paid using current available resources. At December
31, 2020, there is no accrual in the fund financial statements.
Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations
All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. In general, payables and accrued liabilities that will be paid from governmental funds are
reported on the governmental fund financial statements regardless of whether they will be liquidated with
current resources.
However, claims and judgments and the noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities that will be paid from
governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they
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will be paid with current, expendable, available financial resources. In general, payments made within 60
days after year-end are considered to have been made with current available financial resources. Capital
lease obligations that will be paid from governmental funds are not recognized as a liability in the fund
financial statements until due.
Fund Balance and Net Position
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is classified in the following
categories:
Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets into one component of net
position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce this category.
Restricted Net Position - This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

D

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents the net position, which is not restricted for any
project or other purpose. A deficit will require future funding.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a hierarchy
based primarily on the extent to which the Town is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in those funds can be spent. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified
as follows:
Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form or
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions,
charter requirements or enabling legislation, or because of constraints that are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, or the laws or regulations of other governments.
Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the
Board of Trustees (the “Board”). The Board is the highest level of decision making authority for the
Town. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions approved by
the Board.
Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that
are intended to be used for specific purposes. The Board has the authority to assign amounts for specific
purposes.
Unassigned - represents the net position of the Town, which is not restricted for any project or other
purpose. A deficit will require future funding.
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are
available, the Town considers restricted resources to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred
for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the Town considers amounts to
have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed,
unless the Board has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.
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As of December 31, 2020, fund balances are composed of the following:
General Fund

Street Fund

Park Fund

Conservation

Total

Trust Fund

Governmental

Nonspendable:
Prepaid items

$

7,160

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

7,160

Restricted:
Emergencies
Parks and open space

306,349
-

-

-

585,808

306,349
585,808

57,118

-

-

-

57,118

-

1,366,617

2,082,160

-

3,448,777

Committed:
Cemetery operations
Assigned:

D

Capital projects
Subsequent year's
expenditures
Unassigned

Total fund balances

1,634,236

782,234

2,853,513

-

-

$ 7,078,957

$ 3,000,853

$ 2,864,394

6,271,287

$

-

2,853,513

585,808

$ 13,530,012
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Interfund Transactions

3,854,817

Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that
are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and
as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions are
reported as transfers.
Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

2. Cash and Investments
Deposits
Colorado state statutes govern the entity’s deposits of cash. For deposits in excess of federally insured
limits, Colorado Revised Statutes require the depository institution to maintain collateral on deposit with an
official custodian (as authorized by the State Banking Board). The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act
(“PDPA”) requires state regulators to certify eligible depositories for public deposit.

36
Page 67 of 94

Town of Wellington
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020

PDPA requires the eligible depositories with public deposits in excess of the amounts insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) to create a single institutional collateral pool of obligations of the
State of Colorado or local Colorado governments and obligations secured by first lien mortgages on real
property located in the State. The pool is to be maintained by another institution or held in trust for all
uninsured public deposits as a group. The market value of the assets in the pool must be at least 102% of
the uninsured deposits. At December 31, 2020, the Town had deposits with financial institutions with a
carrying amount (book balance) of $6,573,373. The bank balances with the financial institutions were
$6,757,397 which of this amount, $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, with the excess in
2020 covered by PDPA.
Cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash, held by the Town at December 31, 2020 were as
follows:
$

Total

$ 47,144,090

D

Cash on hand
Cash with county treasurer and clerk
Cash deposits
Local government investment pool

300
86,885
6,573,373
40,483,532

Cash and cash equivalents, by statement, are as follows:
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Statement of net position:

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

$ 38,793,207
6,952,644
905,734

Statement of fiduciary net position:

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents, restricted
Total

425,294
67,211
$ 47,144,090

Investments
Colorado statutes specify investment instruments meeting defined rating and risk criteria in which the Town
may invest, which include:











Certificates of deposit with an original maturity in excess of three months
Certain obligations of the United States and U.S. Government agency securities
Certain international agency securities
General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
Banker’s acceptance of certain banks
Commercial paper
Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
Certain money market funds
Guaranteed investment contracts
Local government investment pools

The Town’s policy is to hold investments until maturity.
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Custodial Credit Risk – Investments
For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of a counter party, the Town
would not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party. The Town does not have a specific policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31,
2020, the Town had no investments exposed to custodial credit risk outside of its investment in the Colorado
Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (the “Trust”), discussed below.
Interest Rate Risk
Colorado Revised Statutes limit investment maturities to five years or less from the date of purchase. This
limit on investment maturities is a means of limiting exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.
Local Government Investment Pools

3. Receivables

ft
ra

D

At December 31, 2020, the Town had invested $40,483,532 in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset
Trust (the “Trust”), an investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado to pool
surplus funds. The State Securities Commission administers and enforces all State statutes governing the
Trust. The Trust operates similarly to a money market fund and each share is equal in value to $1. The
Trust offers shares in two portfolios, COLOTRUST PRIME and COLOTRUST PLUS+. COLOTRUST PRIME invests
only in U.S. Treasury and government agencies. COLOTRUST PLUS+ can invest in U.S. Treasury, government
agencies, and in the highest-rate commercial paper. A designated custodial bank serves as custodian for the
Trust’s portfolios pursuant to a custodian agreement. The custodian acts as a safekeeping agent for the
Trust’s investment portfolios and provides services as the depository in connection with direct investments
and withdrawals. The custodian’s internal records segregate investments owned by the Trust. The Trust is
rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s and is measured at net asset value. There are no unfunded
commitments, the redemption frequency is daily and there is no redemption notice period.

Receivables at December 31, 2020, consisted of the following:

Type

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Total

Taxes
Trade accounts
Intergovernmental
Other

$ 1,776,235
48,039
243,057

$

86,608
548,950
6,091

$ 1,862,843
548,950
48,039
249,148

Total

$ 2,067,331

$

641,649

$ 2,708,980

4. Interfund Receivables/Payables and Transfers/
The Town’s interfund receivables and payables represent short-term receivables and payables. The balances
resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments
between funds are made. At December 31, 2020, the Storm Drainage Fund owed the General Fund
$420,000.
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Interfund Transfers
Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, or to use unrestricted revenues collected in the
General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations. The following transfers were made during the year ended December 31, 2020:
Transfers Out
Street
Fund

Transfers In:

Park
Fund

Water
Fund

Sewer
Fund

Drainage
Fund

Total

General Fund

$

480,761

$

298,492

$

714,101

$

487,931

$

99,164

$

2,080,449

Total

$

480,761

$

298,492

$

714,101

$

487,931

$

99,164

$

2,080,449

D

5. Capital Assets

A summary of changes in governmental activities capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2020, is as
follows:

Governmental activities:

ft
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Beginning
Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land and water rights
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$ 1,520,046
114,895

Additions

$

Deletions

-

$

-

$

Ending
Balance

1,520,046
114,895

1,634,941

-

-

1,634,941

1,276,037
12,683,968
22,927,235
1,419,859

515,257
105,542
600,521
61,526

-

1,791,294
12,789,510
23,527,756
1,481,385

38,307,099

1,282,846

-

39,589,945

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Streets and improvements
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Streets and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciated

(770,621)
(3,659,697)
(11,898,020)
(1,157,503)

(28,266)
(212,681)
(971,441)
(30,393)

-

(798,887)
(3,872,378)
(12,869,461)
(1,187,896)

(17,485,841)

(1,242,781)

-

(18,728,622)

-

20,861,323

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

20,821,258

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$22,456,199

40,065
$

40,065

$

-

$

22,496,264
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Depreciation expense for governmental activities has been allocated to various activities as follows:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public works
Parks and recreation
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

$

46,608
968,285
227,888

$

1,242,781

A summary of changes in business-type activities capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2020, is as
follows:
Beginning
Ending
Balance
Additions
Deletions
Balance
Business-type activities:
$ 2,914,870
2,064,621
4,979,491

D

Land and water rights
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$ 2,011,800
1,027,180
3,038,980

$
(856,089)
(856,089)

$

4,926,670
2,235,712
7,162,382

Capital assets, being depreciated:

46,844,095
1,398,510
48,242,605
(15,761,243)

893,945
457,958
1,351,903
(1,406,427)

-

47,738,040
1,856,468
49,594,508
(17,167,670)

(54,524)

-

32,426,838
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Utilities systems
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

32,481,362

Business-type activities capital assets, net

$37,460,853

$ 2,984,455

$(856,089) $

39,589,219

Depreciation expense for business-type activities has been allocated to various activities as follows:
Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Storm drainage

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

$

747,186
542,919
116,322

$

1,406,427
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6. Long-Term Debt
Governmental Activities
In 2014, the Town borrowed $2,400,000 from First National Bank, with monthly principal and interest
payments beginning in 2016 and maturing in 2029. The loan requires monthly payments of $22,455 principal
and interest, fixed at 2.31%. The Park Fund is required to maintain a coverage amount of 125% of principal
and interest. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Town met the coverage amount.
Business-Type Activities

D

In 2019, the Town entered into a loan payable with the Colorado Water Resource and Power Development
Authority (“CWRPDA”). The 20 year loan requires varying semi-annual principal and interest payments at
interest ranging from 3.0 to 5.0% through August 1, 2039. The loan is a special revenue obligation of the
Sewer Fund payable from sewer rates, fees, standby charges, and charges from the use and operation of the
system and from such other funds legally available after the payment of operation and maintenance
expenses of the system. As of December 31, 2020, the Town had not drawn down funds from this loan. The
remaining amount available of $24.8 million to be received is reflected as loan proceeds receivable in the
accompanying statement of net position.
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In September 2014 the Town entered into a 20 year general obligation sewer bond in the amount of
$2,400,000, due in 2024. The special revenue bond has variable interest rate, not to exceed 4%, and
escalating principal payments.
In 2002, the Town entered into a loan payable with the Colorado Water Resource and Power Development
Authority (“CWRPDA”). The 20 year note requires varying semi-annual principal and interest payments at
3.71%, payments through August 1, 2022. The loan is a special revenue obligation of the Sewer Fund payable
from sewer rates, fees, standby charges, and charges from the use and operation of the system and from
such other funds legally available after the payment of operation and maintenance expenses of the system.
In 2001, the Town entered into a loan payable with CWRPDA requiring semi-annual payments of $36,747
principal and interest, at 4.0% through May 1, 2022. The loan is a special revenue obligation of the Water
Fund payable from water rates, fees, standby charges, and charges from the use and operation of the
system and from such other funds legally available after the payment of operation and maintenance
expenses of the system.
During 1984, the Town entered into a general obligation water bond in the amount of $500,000. Bond is due
in escalating installments and matures on December 1, 2023. Interest is fixed at 5%.
During 1982, the Town entered into a loan agreement with Colorado Water Conservation Board (“CWCB”)
requiring annual payments of $57,593 principal and interest at 4.0% through December 1, 2023. Revenues of
the Town are pledged in an amount sufficient to pay the annual amounts due under the loan contract.
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Following is a summary of the debt transactions for the year ended December 31, 2020:

Beginning
Balance

Additions

Ending
Balance

Retirements

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities
2014 First National Bank loan
Accrued compensated absences

$

1,506,850

$

Total

$

1,628,368

$

33,000

$

104,000

$

-

121,518

-

$ (236,599) $

33,000

(9,414)
$ (246,013) $

1,270,251

$

242,304

145,104

-

1,415,355

$ 242,304

Business-Type Activities
1984 General Obligation water bond

$

(24,000) $

80,000

$

25,000

1982 Colorado Water Conservation
Board loan

210,879

-

(51,051)

159,828

51,201

173,207

-

(67,232)

105,975

69,948

Power Development Authority loan

947,923

-

(291,732)

656,191

314,619

2014 General Obligation sewer bond

1,985,000

-

(105,000)

1,880,000

110,000

D

2001 Colorado Water Resource and

Power Development Authority loan
2002 Colorado Water Resource and

ft
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2019 Colorado Water Resource and

Power Development Authority loan
Total

24,014,561

-

$ 27,435,570

$

-

(1,006,798)

23,007,763

1,025,372

$(1,545,813) $ 25,889,757

$1,596,140

Current portion of long-term debt
Discount on long-term debt
Premium on long-term debt

(1,596,140)
(838)

740,259

Non-current portion of long-term liabilities

$ 25,033,038

The following table represents future debt service requirements as of December 31, 2020:
Governmental Activities
Principal
Interest

Year
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2039

$

Business-Type Activities
Principal
Interest

Total

242,304
248,040
253,912
259,892
266,103
-

$

27,156
21,420
15,548
9,568
3,384
-

$ 1,596,140
1,615,887
1,268,681
1,211,978
1,229,550
6,500,232
6,904,648
5,562,641

$

534,069
494,854
456,911
429,634
405,784
1,693,147
1,102,606
293,461

$ 2,399,669
2,380,201
1,995,052
1,911,072
1,904,821
8,193,379
8,007,254
5,856,102

$ 1,270,251

$

77,076

$ 25,889,757

$ 5,410,466

$ 32,647,550
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7. Rate Maintenance
Water Fund
Pursuant to the 2001 CWRPDA loan agreement, the Town shall establish, levy, and collect rents, rates, and
other charges for the products and services provided by the Town’s water system (the “Water System”) in
an amount sufficient to: (1) meet the operation and maintenance expenses of the Water System, (2) comply
with all covenants in the loan resolution, and (3) pay at least 110% of the debt service on all indebtedness or
at least 110% of all such debt if connection fees are included as a source of payment.
The following calculation shows the Town has complied with the rate maintenance provision of this loan
agreement.
Operating revenues

$ 2,413,007
5,356,216

Subtotal

7,769,223

D

Connection fees

Operation and maintenance expenses (not including depreciation)

$ 5,169,963
$

67,232
6,263
73,495
x110%

ft
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Net revenue as defined in loan agreement
2020 principal due
2020 interest due

2,599,260

80,845

Amount the current year revenues were in excess of the requirements
of the CWRPDA loan agreement.

$ 5,089,118

Per the loan agreement, the Town is required to either raise rates within 60 days after the end of the year
to comply with the rate covenant or to hire an independent firm of accountants or consulting engineers to
do a rate study within 120 days of year-end to recommend a rate increase to meet the loan covenant.

Sewer Fund

Pursuant to the 2002 CWRPDA loan agreement, the Town shall establish, levy, and collect rents, rates, and
other charges for the products and services provided by the Town’s sewer system (the “Sewer System”) in
an amount sufficient to: (1) meet the operation and maintenance expenses of the Sewer System, (2) comply
with all covenants in the loan resolution, and (3) pay at least 110% of the debt service on all indebtedness or
at least 110% of all such debt if connection fees are included as a source of payment.
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The following calculation shows the Town has complied with the rate maintenance provision of this loan
agreement.
Operating revenues
Connection fees

$ 1,431,521
2,042,490

Subtotal

3,474,011

Operation and maintenance expenses (not including depreciation)
Net revenue as defined in loan agreement
2020 principal due
2020 interest due

781,511
$ 2,692,500
$

297,919
27,342
325,261
x110%

D

Amount the current year revenues were in excess of the requirements
of the CWRPDA loan agreement.

357,787
$ 2,334,713

Per the loan agreement, the Town is required to either raise rates within 60 days after the end of the year
to comply with the rate covenant or to hire an independent firm of accountants or consulting engineers to
do a rate study within 120 days of year-end to recommend a rate increase to meet the loan covenant.
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The Town Board approved resolution 1-2012 SE establishing a rate stabilization account in the Sewer Fund in
conformity with the rate covenant provisions of the 2002 CWRPDA loan agreement. This resolution
restricted $350,000 specifically for debt service on the aforementioned CWRPDA loan, retroactive to
December 31, 2011. This restriction, plus the calculation shown above, demonstrates the Town is in
compliance with the requirements of the CWRPDA loan at December 31, 2020.
The CWRPDA loans in the Water and Sewer Funds require the Town to maintain an operations and
maintenance reserve in an amount equal to three months of operations and maintenance expenses,
excluding depreciation of the system, as set forth in the annual budget for the current fiscal year. The
Town has restricted $555,734 in the Water Fund and $350,000 in the Sewer Fund to comply with the terms
of these agreements.
Pursuant to the 2014 special revenue bond obligation agreement, the Town shall establish, maintain,
enforce, and collect rates, fees, and charges for the services provided by the Town’s wastewater system to
create gross revenue each calendar year sufficient to pay operation and maintenance expenses and to
create net revenue in an amount: (1) equal to not less than 120% of the amount necessary to pay when due
the principal of and interest on the bonds and any parity lien bonds coming due during such calendar year;
and (2) sufficient to make up any deficiencies in the reserve account. In the event that the gross revenue at
any time is not sufficient to make such payments, the Town shall promptly increase such rates, fees, and
charges to an extent which will ensure the payments and accumulations required by the ordinance.
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December 31, 2020
The following calculation shows the Town has complied with the rate maintenance provision of this bond
agreement.
Operating revenues
Connection fees

$ 1,431,521
2,042,490

Subtotal

3,474,011

Operation and maintenance expenses (not including depreciation)
Net revenue as defined in loan agreement
2019 principal due
2019 interest due

781,511
$ 2,692,500
$

105,000
67,568
172,568
x120%

D

Amount the current year revenues were in excess of the requirements
of the general bond obligation.

207,082
$ 2,485,418

8. Contingencies
Risk Management
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The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The Town carries commercial insurance covering specific and general risks of loss, including worker’s
compensation and employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have
not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There have been no
significant reductions in insurance coverage.

9. Taxes, Spending and Debt Limitations
Tabor Amendment

In November 1992, Colorado voters passed an amendment (the “Amendment” or “TABOR”) to the State
Constitution (Article X, Section 20) which limits the revenue raising and spending abilities of state and local
governments. The limits on property taxes, revenue, and “fiscal year spending” include allowable annual
increases tied to inflation and local growth in construction valuation. Fiscal year spending, as defined by
the Amendment excludes spending from certain revenue and financing sources such as federal funds, gifts,
property sales, fund transfers, damage awards, and fund reserve (balance). The Amendment requires voter
approval for any increase in mill levy or tax rates, new taxes, or creation of multi-year debt. Revenue
earned in excess of the “spending limit” must be refunded or approved to be retained by the Town under
specified voting requirements by the entire electorate.
The Amendment also requires local governments to establish emergency reserves to be used for declared
emergencies only. An emergency, as defined by the Amendment, excludes economic conditions, revenue
shortfalls, or salary or fringe benefit increases. These reserves are required to be 3% or more of fiscal year
spending (excluding bonded debt service). The Town has restricted $289,767 for this purpose.
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December 31, 2020
On November 5, 1996, the voting citizens of the Town of Wellington authorized the Town (retroactive to
January 1, 1995) to, without imposing any new taxes or increases in tax rates, retain all revenue from all
sources in 1995 and subsequent years, and to spend the same as a voter-approved revenue change and as
exception to limits which would otherwise apply for each of said years under Colorado Constitution Article
X, Section 20, the taxpayer’s bill of rights. This effectively removed all revenue and spending limits imposed
by TABOR.
The Town believes it is in compliance with the provisions of TABOR. However, TABOR is complex and
subject to interpretation. Many of its provisions will require judicial interpretation.

10. COVID-19 and CARES Act
On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency because
of a new strain of coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (the “COVID-19 Outbreak”) and the risks to the
international community as the virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO
classified the COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally.
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The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is
uncertain as to the full magnitude that the pandemic will have on the Town’s financial condition, liquidity,
and future results of operations. Management is actively monitoring the impact of the global situation on its
financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, industry, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of
the COVID-19 outbreak and the global responses to curb its spread, the Town is not able to estimate the
effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity for fiscal year
2021.
Access to grants and contracts from federal, state, and local governments may decrease or may not be
available depending on appropriations. The outbreak may have a continued material adverse impact on
economic and market conditions, triggering a period of national, regional, or statewide economic slowdown.
This situation has not depressed State or Federal funding during fiscal year 2020, but these funding sources
may depress in the future.
On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed into law the “Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
(“CARES”) Act.” The CARES Act, among other things, includes provisions appropriating funds from programs
of the United States Department of the Treasury and Department of Education to be used to make payments
for specified uses to states and certain local governments.
The Town continues to examine the impact that the CARES Act may have on its operations. As of December
31, 2020, the Town had received $552,720 in federal funding awards under the CARES Act.

10. Subsequent Events
Management of the Town has evaluated subsequent events through July XX, 2021, the date that the
financial statements were available to be issued. No items were identified that would require adjust to or
disclosure in the financial statements.
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Town of Wellington
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance (Budget and Actual) - General Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts
Final
Original
Revenues
Taxes
Franchise fees
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Earnings on investments
Miscellaneous

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$ 3,420,791
188,988
501,560
3,990
101,927
11,719
179,161
14,695

$ 3,420,791
188,988
501,560
3,990
101,927
11,719
179,161
14,695

$ 4,019,972
184,840
775,820
574,804
162,693
8,385
52,943
22,003

4,422,831

4,422,831

5,801,460

94,145
41,479
343,720
733,127
166,277
209,018
172,200
799,614

94,145
41,479
343,720
733,127
166,277
209,018
172,200
799,614

141,554
15,010
932,488
569,975
202,857
146,335
227,709
787,291

(47,409)
26,469
(588,768)
163,152
(36,580)
62,683
(55,509)
12,323

1,351,314
91,503

1,351,314
91,503

1,365,539
70,157

(14,225)
21,346

1,422,691
22,500
68,857

1,422,691
22,500
68,857

1,167,080
404
-

255,611
22,096
68,857

90,910
261,910
203,340
1,541,000

90,910
261,910
203,340
1,541,000

61,096
163,624
187,449
616,734

29,814
98,286
15,891
924,266

7,613,605

7,613,605

6,655,302

958,303

(3,190,774)

(3,190,774)

Other financing sources
Transfers in

2,421,173

2,421,173

2,080,449

(340,724)

Total other financing sources

2,421,173

2,421,173

2,080,449

(340,724)

Total revenues

$

599,181
(4,148)
274,260
570,814
60,766
(3,334)
(126,218)
7,308
1,378,629

Expenditures
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Current:
General government:
Legislative
Judicial
Administrator
Finance
Customer service
Human resources
Information technology
Planning and zoning
Public safety:
Police
Protective inspections
Public works:
Operating
Cemetery
General use buildings
Parks and recreation:
Community activities
Economic development
Library
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Net change in fund balance

$

Fund balance at beginning of year

(769,601) $

(769,601)

(853,842)

1,226,607

2,336,932

$ 1,996,208

5,852,350

Fund balance at end of year

$ 7,078,957
See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Town of Wellington
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances (Budget and Actual) - Street and Park Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020
Street Fund
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
$ 1,536,665
440,640
1,800
21,906
2,000
2,003,011

$ 1,536,665
440,640
1,800
21,906
2,000
2,003,011

$

$

319,842
18,000
1,064,189
1,402,031

314,530
600,522
915,052

5,312
18,000
463,667
486,979

600,980

1,806,501

1,205,521

-

$

974,697
362,340
109,599
35,000
1,481,636

$

577,255
430,324
7,100
333,000
269,460
1,617,139

-

(506,938)

(506,938)

(480,761)

(506,938)

(506,938)

(480,761)

94,042

(11,496)
634,444
106,000
(9,168)
(1,238)
718,542

$

94,042

1,325,740

Fund balances at beginning of year
$

Actual
Amounts
$ 1,317,190
311,750
36,508
15,850
2,881
1,684,179

577,255
430,324
7,100
333,000
269,460
1,617,139

439,561
298,235
65,590
269,460
1,072,846

137,694
132,089
7,100
267,410
544,293

342,493
(50,590)
(73,091)
(19,150)
2,881
202,543

(135,503)

611,333

746,836

200,000

(298,492)

(200,000)

(164,330)

(26,177)

(334,162)

(26,177)

(134,162)

(134,162)

(298,492)

(269,665) $

(269,665)

312,841

$

$

(135,503)

200,000
(334,162)

$ 1,179,344

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

974,697
362,340
109,599
35,000
1,481,636

t

Transfers out
Total other financing sources
(uses)

Fund balances at end of year

$

1,525,169
1,075,084
107,800
12,738
762
2,721,553

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

f
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Expenditures
Current:
Public works/Parks and recreation:
Operating
319,842
Recreation
Small equipment and other
18,000
Capital outlay
1,064,189
Debt Service
Total expenditures
1,402,031
Deficiency of revenues over
600,980
expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
-

Net change in fund balances

Actual
Amounts

D

Revenues
Taxes
Impact fees
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Earnings on investments
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Park Fund
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

1,675,113

2,551,553

3,000,853

$ 2,864,394

35,670

$

582,506

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Town of Wellington
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance (Budget and Actual)
Conservation Trust Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Actual
Amounts

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Intergovernmental
Earnings on investments

$

Total revenues

101,000
500

$

101,500

Net change in fund balance

$

101,500

$

101,000
500

$

102,178
4,440

101,500

106,618

101,500

106,618

Fund balance at beginning of year

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

1,178
3,940
5,118

$

5,118

479,190

Fund balance at end of year

$

585,808
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See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Town of Wellington
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis)
Water Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts
Final
Original
Operating revenues
Charges for services

Actual
Amounts

$ 2,097,382

$ 2,097,382

Total operating revenues

2,097,382

2,097,382

2,410,129

312,747

Operating expenses
Operating
Small equipment

2,010,045
216,125

2,010,045
216,125

2,570,697
28,563

(560,652)
187,562

Total operating expenses

2,226,170

2,226,170

2,599,260

(373,090)

$

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Change in net position - budgetary basis

312,747

(128,788)

(189,131)

(60,343)

85,593
4,466,601
371,046
(480,306)
(1,143,573)
(18,523,008)
13,730,780
(908,674)

85,593
4,466,601
371,046
(480,306)
(1,143,573)
(18,523,008)
13,730,780
(908,674)

85,593
5,356,216
103,664
449
(425,957)
(1,149,081)
(3,822,255)
(714,101)

889,615
(267,382)
449
54,349
(5,508)
14,700,753
(13,730,780)
194,573

(2,401,541)

(2,401,541)

(565,472)
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Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Property taxes
Capital contributions
Earnings on investments
Other non-operating revenue
Interest expense
Principal paid
Capital outlay
Loan proceeds
Transfers out

2,410,129

(128,788)

D

Operating income (loss)

$

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$ (2,530,329) $ (2,530,329)

(754,603) $ 1,581,153

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis
Depreciation
Principal paid
Capital outlay

(747,186)
1,149,081
3,822,255

Change in net position - GAAP basis

3,469,547

Net position at beginning of year

1,641,496

36,585,863

Net position at end of year

$ 40,055,410
See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Town of Wellington
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis)
Sewer Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Actual
Amounts

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Operating revenues
Charges for services

$ 1,327,389

$ 1,327,389

1,327,389

1,327,389

1,431,521

Operating expenses
Operating
Small equipment

711,172
72,600

711,172
72,600

772,640
8,871

(61,468)
63,729

Total operating expenses

783,772

783,772

781,511

2,261

Operating income

543,617

543,617

650,010

106,393

2,042,490
90,872
1,711
(88,315)
(396,732)
(435,776)
(487,931)

98,490
(72,514)
1,711
45,205
6,187
931,460
65,388

Total operating revenues

D

1,944,000
163,386
(133,520)
(402,919)
(1,367,236)
(553,319)

1,944,000
163,386
(133,520)
(402,919)
(1,367,236)
(553,319)

(349,608)

(349,608)

1,431,521
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Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Capital contributions
Earnings on investments
Other nonoperating revenue
Interest expense
Principal paid
Capital outlay
Transfers out

$

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position - budgetary basis

$

194,009

Reconciliation to GAAP basis
Depreciation
Principal paid
Capital outlay

$

194,009

$

104,132
104,132

726,319

1,075,927

1,376,329

$ 1,182,320

(542,919)
396,732
435,776

Change in net position - GAAP basis

1,665,918

Net position at beginning of year

22,141,024

Net position at end of year

$ 23,806,942
See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Town of Wellington
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis)
Storm Drainage Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Actual
Amounts

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Operating revenues
Charges for services

$

589,002

$

589,002

$

620,178

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

31,176

589,002

589,002

620,178

31,176

Operating expenses
Operating

414,446

414,446

783,405

(368,959)

Total operating expenses

414,446

414,446

783,405

(368,959)

Operating loss

174,556

174,556

(163,227)

(337,783)

18,296
20,558
217,728
(213,380)
(118,080)

18,296
20,558
217,728
(213,380)
(118,080)

19,288
6,965
653,352
(38,077)
(99,164)

992
(13,593)
435,624
175,303
18,916

(74,878)

(74,878)

542,364

617,242

99,678

379,137

D

Total operating revenues

ft
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Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Taxes
Earnings on investments
Impact fees
Capital outlay
Transfers out

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position - budgetary basis

$

99,678

Reconciliation to GAAP basis
Depreciation
Capital outlay

$

$

279,459

(116,322)
38,077

Change in net position - GAAP basis

300,892

Net position at beginning of year

3,425,117

Net position at end of year

$ 3,726,009
See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Town of Wellington
Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (Budget and Actual)
Library Trust Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Actual
Amounts

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Additions
Library impact fees

$

44,000

Total additions

$

44,000

Change in net position

$

44,000

$

44,000

$

67,750

44,000

67,750

44,000

67,750

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

23,750
23,750

$

23,750

424,755

Net position at beginning of year

$

Net position at end of year

492,505

See accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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Board of Trustees Meeting
Date:
Submitted By:
Subject:

August 24, 2021
Krystal Eucker, Town Clerk
Liquor License Renewal - El Mezcal, Inc d/b/a Sol de Jalisco
 Presentation: Krystal Eucker, Town Clerk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
El Mezcal, Inc, d/b/a Sol de Jalisco has submitted their annual renewal for their Hotel & Restaurant liquor
license. A review of the application found the establishment is in good standing with the Colorado Secretary of
State, the establishment is current with sales tax and the Larimer County Sheriff's Office reported no issues
directly related to the establishment's liquor license. There were no issues or concerns during the compliance
inspection of the premise.
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
ATTACHMENTS
1.
El Mezcal Inc, (Sol de Jalisco)
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